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Corporate InformatIon

Name of  Company 
Marawila Resorts PLC

Status & Legal Form 
A Public Quoted Company with Limited Liability
Incorporated in Sri Lanka on 22nd January 1992
Under the Companies Act No. 17 of  1982 and 
re-registered under the Companies Act No. 7 of  
2007on 3rd September 2008.

Company Registration No. 
PQ 198 

Registered Office
8-5/2, Leyden Bastian Road,
York Arcade Building,  Colombo 01.

Stock Exchange Listing
The Issued Ordinary Shares of  Marawila Resorts PLC
are listed with the Colombo Stock Exchange of  Sri Lanka.

Board of  Directors 
S.D.R. Arudpragasam - (Chairman)
C.P.R. Perera – (Deputy Chairman)
A. Rajaratnam 
(Alternate, Mr. Anushman Rajaratnam)
T. Theyagamurti
A.R. Peiris
S. Rajaratnam
E.P.A. Cooray
Amrit Rajaratnam
A.R. Rasiah
 
Secretaries 
Corporate Managers & Secretaries (Private) Ltd
8-5/2, Leyden Bastian Road,
York Arcade Building, Colombo 01.

Auditors
KPMG
Chartered Accountants,
32 A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha,
Colombo 03.

Lawyers
Julius & Creasy
P.O. Box 154,
Colombo

Bankers
Hatton National Bank PLC    
Commercial Bank of  Ceylon PLC

Hotel 
Club Palm Bay
Thalwilawella, Thoduwawa, Marawila
Tel  : 032 - 2255831-3, 2254956
Fax : 032 - 2254960
E-mail : palmbay@lankacom.net

Sales & Reservation Office    
8-2/1, York Arcade Building,
Leyden Bastian Road,
Colombo 01.
Tel : 2326927/938    Fax : 2326949
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notICe of meetIng

Notice is hereby given that the Twentieth Annual 
General Meeting of  Marawila Resorts PLC will be 
held at the Grand Oriental Hotel, No. 2, York Street, 
Colombo 01, on Friday, 11th July 2014 at 10.45 a.m. 
for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the Annual Report of  
the Board of  Directors and the Statement of  
Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2014 
with the Report of  the Auditors thereon.    

2. To re-elect as a Director, Mr. T. Theyagamurti 
who retires in accordance with Article 91 of  the 
Articles of  Association.  

3. To re-elect as a Director, Mr. S. Rajaratnam  
who retires in accordance with Article 91 of  the 
Articles of  Association of  the Company. 

4. To reappoint Mr. A. Rajaratnam who is over 
seventy years of  age, as a Director. Special 
Notice has been received from a shareholder of  
the intention to pass a resolution which is set out 
below in relation to his reappointment. (see note 
4 below) 

Notes:
1. A member of  the Company who is entitled to 

attend and vote may appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote instead of  him or her. A proxy need 
not be a member of  the Company.

2. A Form of  Proxy is enclosed with this Report.
3. The instrument appointing a proxy must be 

deposited at the Registered Office of  the 
Company’s Secretaries at No. 8-5/2, Leyden 
Bastian Road, York Arcade Building, Colombo 01, 
not less than forty eight hours before the time fixed 
for the meeting. 

4. The Company has received Special Notice from 
a shareholder of  the Company giving notice of  
the intention to move the following Resolution 
regarding the reappointment of  Mr. A. 
Rajaratnam, as an Ordinary Resolution:

 Resolved -
 “that Mr. A. Rajaratnam who is seventy two 

years of  age, be and is hereby reappointed a 

5. To reappoint Mr C.P.R Perera who has attained 
the age of  seventy years as a Director. Special 
Notice has been received from a shareholder of  
the intention to pass a resolution which is set out 
below in relation to his reappointment. (see note 
5 below)

6. To authorize the Directors to determine 
contributions to Charities.

7. To reappoint as Auditors, Messrs KPMG and 
authorize the Directors to determine their 
remuneration.

By Order of  the Board
CORPORATE MANAGERS & SECRETARIES 
(PRIVATE) LIMITED.
Secretaries

Colombo
23rd May 2014.

Director of  the Company and it is further 
specially declared that the age limit of  seventy 
years referred to in Section 210 of  the 
Companies Act No. 7 of  2007 shall not apply to 
the said Mr. A. Rajaratnam .”

5. The Company has received Special Notice from 
a shareholder of  the Company giving notice of  
the intention to move the following Resolution 
regarding the reappointment of  Mr. C.P.R. 
Perera, as an Ordinary Resolution:

 Resolved-
 “ that Mr. C.P.R. Perera who has attained the 

age of  seventy years, be and is hereby 
reappointed a Director of  the Company and it 
is further specially declared that the age limit of  
seventy years referred to in Section 210 of  the 
Companies Act No. 7 of  2007 shall not apply to 
the said Mr. C.P.R. Perera.”
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ChaIrman’s revIew

On behalf  of  the Board of  Directors, I have pleasure 
in presenting the Annual Report and Audited 
Accounts of  your Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2014.

The year 2013 witnessed a record 1.27 million tourist 
arrivals to the country. This represents an impressive 
growth of  27% over the previous year. Western 
Europe once again accounted for the largest share of  
tourist arrivals, while the Eastern European and 
Asian markets also saw a significant increase in the 
past year. Looking forward, the improving economic 
outlook in Europe, coupled with an increased demand 
for overseas travel experiences within the Asian region 
should result in strong growth in tourist arrivals to Sri 
Lanka. 

For the financial year ended 31st March 2014, the 
Company’s turnover rose by 31% to Rs. 397 million 
from the Rs. 303 million in the previous year. Profit 
after tax for the year was Rs. 13.5 million, compared 
to Rs. 22.7 million in the earlier financial year. Despite 
the growth in turnover during the year, increased 
operating costs during the year resulted in reduced 
margins and overall profitability.   

During the year, the Company continued to focus on 
developing the Club Palm Bay brand in the key 
source markets of  Europe and Asia. Given the high 
fixed costs of  operating a large resort hotel, the main 
driver of  profitability remains the year-round 
occupancy at the hotel. To this end, the management 
team is committed to improving the guest experience 
at the resort with a view to generating positive 

customer reviews and establishing a loyal base of  
repeat clientele to the hotel. The resort continues to 
be an attractive destination for local tourists and the 
corporate market. The opening of  the Colombo – 
Katunayake expressway has reduced the travel time 
to the resort from Colombo, and should contribute to 
the popularity of  Club Palm Bay as a weekend 
getaway for the local market. Further development of  
this market will support management efforts to 
improve the turnover of  the Company. The 
management of  the Company continues to look for 
ways to contain the cost increases experienced by the 
industry. Improved energy efficiency and staff  
productivity will greatly assist in achieving this goal.

The prospects for the tourism sector remains bright. 
Total arrivals to the country should grow further in 
2014 and the years ahead. The Company continues 
to invest in our staff  and facilities in order to benefit 
from this overall growth.

On behalf  of  the Board of  Directors, I wish to thank 
the management team and staff  of  the hotel for their 
dedication and hard work in the past year. I would 
also like to thank our many business partners who 
have supported the Company during the year. I also 
extend my sincere appreciation to my colleagues on 
the Board for their continued guidance and support.

S.D.R. Arudpragasam
Chairman
23rd May 2014.
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Board of dIreCtors

Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam - FCMA (UK)
Chairman

Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam joined the Board of  
Marawila Resorts PLC in 1996 and was appointed 
Chairman in May 2013.  He serves as Chairman of  
several subsidiaries of  The Colombo Fort Land and 
Building PLC (CFLB) and holds the position of  
Deputy Chairman on the Boards of  The Colombo 
Fort Land and Building PLC and Lankem Ceylon 
PLC. He also functions as Managing Director of         
E.B. Creasy & Company PLC in addition to holding 
other Directorships within the CFLB Group.

Mr. C.P.R. Perera
Deputy Chairman 

Mr. C.P.R. Perera joined the Board in 2011 and was 
appointed Deputy Chairman in May 2013. He serves 
on the Board of  The Colombo Fort Land and 
Building PLC (CFLB) and also serves on the Boards 
of  several subsidiary companies of  the CFLB Group. 
He also holds Directorships in other private and 
public Companies. He is a past Chairman of  the Sri 
Lanka Tea Board, Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation, 
PERC and Bank of  Ceylon. He retired as Chairman 
of  Forbes and Walker Ltd and its subsidiary 
Companies in June 2005 after almost 44 years of  
service. He presently functions as the Chairman of  
Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC. He is a Director of  the Sri 
Lanka Business Development Center (SLBDC) and a 
Board Member of  the Outward Bound Trust of  Sri 
Lanka. Mr. Perera has served as a Committee 
Member of  the Ceylon Chamber of  Commerce, The 
Planters Association of  Ceylon, and on the Committee 
of  Management of  the Ceylon Planters Provident 
Society. 

Mr. A. Rajaratnam,  FCA
Director

Mr. A. Rajaratnam joined the Board in 1992 and 
served as Chairman from 1995 to 2013. He serves as 
the Chairman of  The Colombo Fort Land and 
Building PLC (CFLB) and several listed and unlisted 
Companies within the CFLB Group in addition to 
holding other Directorships within the Group. 

Mr. T. Theyagamurti, ACIB (Canada), MIEX (Grad) (UK)
Director 

Mr. Theyagamurti, was appointed to the Board in 
2004. He also serves on the Boards of  several listed 
and unlisted companies in The Colombo Fort Land 
and Building Group. Banker by profession has 
specialized in International Trade and Foreign 
Exchange Trading, counting over 18 years of  service 
with a leading local Bank and an European Bank in 
North America. He has over 18 years service with 
The Colombo Fort Land and Building Group’s 
Hospitality Sector and has successfully completed 
hospitality programmes conducted by the University 
of  Hawaii in Honolulu and IAPCO in Zurich as a 
Congress Organizer. 

Mr. A.R. Peiris,  B.Sc(Cey), FCMA(UK) CGMA
Director

Mr. Peiris was appointed to the Board in 2006. He 
had served the Petroleum Corporation for 10 years in 
Technical, Planning & Finance Divisions and at the 
time he left the Corporation in 1979 was the Head of  
the Refinery Finance Division. Thereafter, he joined 
National Development Bank where he held several 
senior positions for 24 years. He has held Directorships 
in several reputed public listed and unlisted 
Companies. Mr. Peiris also serves on the Board of  
Lankem Ceylon PLC and several of  its subsidiary 
Companies.  He is also a member of  the Board of  
Tess Agro PLC and functions as the Chairman of  its 
Audit Committee.

Mr. E.P.A. Cooray, MBA(Uni.SJ.), CMA, Institute of  
Hospitality (UK)
Director 

Mr. Prema Cooray was appointed to the Board in 
2011. He is the immediate Past Chairman of  Aitken 
Spence PLC and counts well over 30 years in the 
Travel and Tourism Industry, most of  which he spent 
at Aitken Spence developing the conglomerate’s 
hotels and resorts in Sri Lanka and Maldives. He is 
acknowledged for the pivotal role played in the 
development of  sustainable tourism and especially 
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Board of dIreCtors (Contd)...

for his leadership in developing the renowned 
Kandalama Hotel which has won many global 
accolades for its contribution to environmental 
management, food and beverage excellence and 
service standards of  a truly exceptional nature. These 
attributes signaled the entry of  Sri Lanka’s tourism to 
the world map of  the hospitality industry. 

He also led the pioneering effort of  large scale 
expansion to the Republic of  Maldives in the early 
90’s and this regional development contributed 
exceptionally to the overall profile and growth of  
Aitken Spence. 

He is a Past President of  the Tourist Hotels Association 
of  Sri Lanka (1998-2000) and was the Chairman of  
the Sri Lanka Convention Bureau (2007-2009). He 
served as the Secretary General/CEO of  the Ceylon 
Chamber of  Commerce (2003 - 2008).

Presently, he serves as Chairman of  The Rainforest 
Ecolodge, Deniyaya, an unique pioneering 
Ecotourism initiative supported by leading hotel 
companies in Sri Lanka. Mr. Cooray also represents 
many public listed Companies as a Director.

He serves as a Member of  the Tourism Cluster of  
National Council for Economic Development 
(NCED) and also serves as a Member of  the Grants 
Board of  ICTA. 

Mr. Cooray was accorded the national honour as a 
“Legend” by Sri Lanka Tourism in 2011.

Mr. Cooray has a MBA from the University of  Sri 
Jayawardenapura, is a certified Management 
Accountant and is also a member of  the Institute of   
Hospitality, UK.

Mr. S. Rajaratnam,  B.Sc., CA 
Director 

Mr. S. Rajaratnam was appointed to the Board in 
2011. He holds a Bachelor of  Science Degree in 
Business Administration from Boston College, USA 
and is a member of  the Institute of  Chartered 
Accountants in Australia. He has been associated 

with overseas Companies in the field of  Finance and 
currently holds the position of  Deputy Managing 
Director of  E.B. Creasy and Company PLC amongst 
other Directorships in The Colombo Fort Land & 
Building Group. 

Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam, LLB (Notts.), Barrister- at – Law
Director 

Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam was appointed to the Board in 
2012. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Law from the 
University of  Nottingham and is a Barrister at Law 
(Lincoln’s Inn). He began his career at the Law Firm 
of  Julius & Creasy and later joined Lankem Ceylon 
PLC. 

Mr. A.R. Rasiah B.Sc.(Cey.) FCA
Director

Mr. A.R. Rasiah was appointed to the Board in April 
2013. He is a Science Graduate of  the University of  
Ceylon and a Fellow Member of  the Institute of  
Chartered Accountants of  Sri Lanka.  He possesses 
well over 40 years of  experience in Finance at a very 
senior level both internationally and locally.  He 
currently serves on some of  the Companies of  the 
E.B. Creasy Group, Ceylon Cold Stores PLC, Nations 
Trust Bank PLC and MTD Walkers PLC.  He is a 
former (retired) Finance Director of  Nestle (Lanka) 
PLC.  He has been a Visiting Lecturer on Finance 
and Accounts for Nestle  SA  for Africa-Asian and 
Oceanic Regions.  Mr. Rasiah is the Chairman of  
Ceylon Pencil Company Ltd and is currently a 
Visiting Lecturer for MBA students on Finance at the  
Postgraduate Institute of  Management (PIM).  He is 
a former President of  the Benevolent Society of  the 
Institute of  Chartered Accountants of  Sri Lanka and 
a Committee Member of  the Sri Lanka Institute of  
Directors. 
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annual report of the Board of dIreCtors

The Board of  Directors of  Marawila Resorts PLC 
present their Report on the Affairs of  the Company 
together with the Audited Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31st March 2014.

The details set out herein provide the pertinent 
information required by the Companies Act No. 7 of  
2007, and the Colombo Stock Exchange Listing 
Rules and are guided by recommended best practices.

General
The Company was re-registered on 3rd September 
2008 as required under the Companies Act No. 7 of  
2007.

Principal Activities / Business Review
The principal activity of  the Company is to carry on 
the business of  a Tourist Hotel. The Chairman’s 
Review together with the Financial Statements reflect 
the state of  affairs of  the Company.

The Directors to the best of  their knowledge and 
belief  confirm that the Company has not engaged in 
any activities that contravene laws and regulations.

Financial Statements
The Financial Statements of  the Company are given 
on pages 17 to 48.

Independent Auditors’ Report
The Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial 
Statements is given on Page 16.

Accounting Policies
The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation 
of  the Financial Statements are given on pages 21 to 
30.

Interest Register

Directors’ Interest in transactions
The Directors have made general disclosures as 
provided for in Section 192(2) of  the Companies Act 
No. 7 of  2007. Arising from this, details of  contracts 
in which they have an interest are disclosed in Note 
23.4 to the financial statements on pages 41 and 42.

Directors’ Remuneration 
Key Management Personnel Compensation in 
respect of  the Company for the financial year 
2013/2014 are given in Note 23.3 (ii) to the Financial 
Statements on page 40. 

Directors’ Interest in Shares
The Directors of  the Company who have an interest 
in the shares of  the Company have disclosed their 
shareholdings and any acquisitions/ disposals to the 
Board in compliance with Section 200 of  the 
Companies Act No. 7 of  2007.

Details pertaining to Directors’ direct shareholdings 
are set out below:

Name of  Director                           No. of  Shares  
 As at  As at
 31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam 20,000 20,000

Mr. A. Rajaratnam  625 730

Mr. S. Rajaratnam  71,540 71,540

Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam 51, 605 51, 605

Corporate Donations
No Donations were made during the financial year 
2013/2014 (2012 / 2013- Nil).

Directorate
The names of  the Directors who held office during 
the financial year are given below and profiled on 
pages 05 and 06.

Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam - Chairman

Mr. C.P.R. Perera - Deputy Chairman 

Mr. A. Rajaratnam     

Mr. T. Theyagamurti   

Mr. A.R. Peiris    

Mr. S. Rajaratnam

Mr. E.P.A. Cooray

Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam

Mr. A.R. Rasiah                



Marawila Resorts PLC   |   Annual Report 2013/148

annual report of the Board of dIreCtors (Contd)...

In terms of  Article 91 of  the Articles of  Association 
Messrs. T. Theyagamurti  and S. Rajaratnam retire 
by rotation and being eligible offer themselves for re-
election.

Mr. A. Rajaratnam, Director, being over seventy 
years of  age, retires and offers himself  for 
reappointment under and by virtue of  the Special 
Notice received from a shareholder of  the Company 
which is referred to in the Notice of  Meeting. 

Mr. C.P.R Perera, Director, who has attained the age 
of  seventy years, retires and offers himself  for 
reappointment under and by virtue of  the Special 
Notice received from a shareholder of  the Company 
which is referred to in the Notice of  Meeting.

Auditors   
The Financial Statements of  the Company for the 
year have been audited by Messrs KPMG the retiring 
Auditors who have expressed their willingness to 
continue as Auditors of  the Company and are 
recommended for reappointment. A resolution to 
reappoint them and to authorize the Directors to 
determine their remuneration will be proposed at the 
Annual General Meeting.  

The Auditors, Messrs. KPMG were paid Rs. 
480,000/- (2013 – Rs. 510,000/-) as audit fees and 
fees for audit related services by the Company. In 
addition they were paid Rs. 249,043/- ( 2013 – Rs. 
270,404/-) by the Company for non – audit related 
work, which consisted mainly of  tax related work.

As far as the Directors are aware the Auditors do not 
have any relationship (other than that of  an Auditor) 
with the Company. The Auditors do not have any 
interest in the Company.

Revenue
The revenue of  the Company for the year was             
Rs. 397.0 Mn (2012/13- Rs 303.0 Mn).

Results 
The Company made a Net Profit before Tax of           
Rs. 15.7 Mn. against a Net Profit of  Rs. 36.0 in the 
previous year. The detailed results are given in the 
Statement of  Comprehensive Income  on page 17.
 
Property, Plant & Equipment  
The capital expenditure during the year amounted to 
Rs. 13.8 Mn (2012/2013 - Rs. 420.3 Mn) Information 
relating to movements in Property, Plant & Equipment 
are given in Note 11 to the Financial Statements.

Stated Capital 
In compliance with the Companies Act No. 7 of  
2007, the Financial Statements reflect the Stated 
Capital of  the Company. The stated capital is the 
total of  all amounts received by the Company in 
respect of  the issue of  shares.

The Stated Capital of  the Company as at 31.03.2014 
was Rs. 1,001,000,000/- represented by 122,500,000 
Issued and Fully paid Ordinary Shares. There was no 
change to the Stated Capital during the year. 

Retained Earnings 
The Retained Earnings of  the Company as at 31st 
March 2014 amounted to Rs. (93.8 Mn) (31.03.2013-
Rs. (108 Mn).

The movements are shown in the Statement of  
Changes in Equity in the Financial Satements.
 
Taxation
In accordance with the powers conferred on the 
Board of  Investment of  SriLanka (BOI) under 
Section 17(2) of  the BOI Law No. 4 of  1978 and 
terms of  the Agreement, (Registration No. 
368/29/6/92) entered into between BOI and 
Marawila Resorts PLC, the Company was not liable 
to tax on profits from business for a period of  ten 
years commencing from the year of  assessment 
2001/2002. Accordingly the Company’s tax holiday 
ended as at 31st March 2011 and currently the 
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Company is liable for income tax at the rate of  12% 
on profit from business and 28% on other income.   

Share Information 
Information relating to earnings, dividends, net 
assets, market value per share and share trading is 
given on pages 49 and 50.

Events Occurring after the Reporting Period
No circumstances have arisen since the Reporting 
date that  would require adjustments to or disclosure 
in the Financial Statements other than those disclosed 
in Note 26 on page 43.

Capital Commitments and Contingent 
Liabilities
Capital expenditure commitments and contingent 
liabilities as at the date of  the Statement of  Financial 
Position are disclosed in Note 24.1 on page 43.

Employment Policy 
The Company’s recruitment and employment policy 
is non – discriminatory. The occupational health and 
safety standards receive substantial attention. 
Appraisals of  individual employees are carried out in 
order to evaluate their performance and realize their 
potential. This process benefits the Company and the 
employees. The number of  persons employed by the 
Company at the year end was 244 (2012/13 – 194).

Shareholders
The Company has made all endeavours to ensure 
equitable treatment to all shareholders.

Statutory Payments
The Directors, to the best of  their knowledge and 
belief, are satisfied that all Statutory payments of  the 
Company due in relation to the employees and the 
Government are paid. 

Environmental Protection
The Company’s business activities can have direct 
and indirect effects on the environment. It is the 
Company’s policy to minimize any adverse effects its 

activities have on the environment and promote co-
operation and compliance with the relevant 
authorities and regulations. The Directors confirm 
that the Company has not undertaken any activities 
which have caused or likely to cause detriment to the 
environment.

Internal Control
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for 
the Company’s internal control system. The system is 
designed to give assurance regarding the safeguarding 
of  assets, the maintenance of  proper accounting 
records and the reliability of  financial information 
generated. However, any system can ensure only 
reasonable, and not absolute assurance that errors 
and irregularities are either prevented or detected 
within a reasonable period of  time.

The Board is satisfied with the effectiveness of  the 
system of  internal control for the period up to the 
date of  signing these  Financial Statements.

Going Concern
The Directors are confident of  the ability of  the 
Company to continue as a going concern with 
continued assistance from Financial Institutions. 
Accordingly, the going concern basis has been 
adopted in the preparation of  the Financial 
Statements.

For and on behalf  of  the Board

S. Rajaratnam  A.R. Peiris 
Director   Director

By Order of  the Board 

Corporate Managers & Secretaries (Private) Limited.
Secretaries
23rd May 2014.

annual report of the Board of dIreCtors (Contd)...
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Corporate governanCe

Corporate Governance is the mechanism by which 
Companies are managed and directed with the 
objective of  balancing and attaining the corporate 
objectives, the alignment of  corporate behavior 
within the expectations of  the law and society and the 
accountability to shareholders and the responsibility 
to other recognized stakeholders.

The Board of  Directors

The Board, Composition & Meetings
The Board comprises of  9 Directors. The Directors 
including the Chairman are all Non Executive 
Directors of  whom Four are Independent. The 
Directors are professionals who have a wealth of  
experience and   knowledge to offer in the fields of  
Hospitality Management, Marketing, Finance, and 
Legal.    
   

Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam - Chairman - Non Executive

Mr. C.P.R. Perera - Deputy Chairman -  
  Independent Non Executive

Mr. A. Rajaratnam - Non Executive 

Mr. T. Theyagamurti  - Independent Non Executive 

Mr. A.R. Peiris  - Non Executive

Mr. S. Rajaratnam - Non Executive  

Mr. E.P.A. Cooray - Independent Non Executive 

Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam - Non Executive 

Mr. A.R. Rasiah - Independent Non Executive

The Board met three times during the year and in 
addition to Board Meetings, matters are referred to 
the Board and decided by Resolutions in Writing. 
Further York Hotel Management Services Limited 
the Managing Agents of  the Company meet regularly 
to review progress, discuss operational issues and also 
focus on the achievement of  the medium and long 
term objectives of  the Company. 

The number of  Meetings of  the Board and the 
individual attendance by members is shown below:

Total number of  Meetings held : 3

Name of  Director Board Meetings
 Attended

Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam 3/3

Mr. C.P.R. Perera 3/3

Mr. A. Rajaratnam (excused)

Mr. T. Theyagamurti 3/3

Mr. A.R. Peiris  3/3

Mr. S. Rajaratnam 3/3

Mr. E.P.A. Cooray 3/3

Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam  (excused)

Mr. A.R. Rasiah 3/3

The Non - Executive Directors have submitted 
declarations of  their independence or non-
independence to the Board of  Directors. 

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. C.P.R. Perera is a Director of  the Ultimate Parent 
Company, The Colombo Fort Land and Building  
PLC (CFLB) and holds Directorships on certain 
subsidiaries of  CFLB. He has also served on certain 
subsidiary Companies for more than nine years.        
Mr. Perera is a Director on the Boards of  other 
Companies in which a majority of  the Directors of  
the Company are Directors and serves on the Boards 
of  some Companies which has a significant 
shareholding in another. However  the Board having 
taken into consideration all other circumstances listed 
in the Colombo Stock Exchange Listing Rules 
pertaining to the Criteria for Defining Independence 
is of  the opinion that Mr. C. P. R. Perera is nevertheless 
independent.

Mr. E.P.A. Cooray is on the Boards of  other 
Companies in which a majority of  the Directors of  
the Company are Directors and is a Director of  a 
Company which has a significant shareholding in 
another. Despite these factors, the Board having 
taken into consideration all other circumstances listed 
in the Colombo Stock Exchange Listing Rules 
pertaining to the Criteria for Defining Independence 
is of  the opinion that Mr. E.P.A. Cooray is nevertheless 
independent.
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Although Mr. T. Theyagamurti has served on the 
Board for more than nine years, and despite being  on 
the Boards of  other Companies in which a majority 
of  the Directors of  the Company are Directors and 
being on the Boards of  certain Companies which has 
a significant shareholding in another, the Directors 
having taken into consideration all other circumstances 
listed in the Colombo Stock Exchange Listing Rules 
pertaining to the criteria for defining independence is 
of  the opinion that Mr. T. Theyagamurti is  
nevertheless independent.

Mr. A.R Rasiah serves on the Boards of  certain 
subsidiaries of  The Colombo Fort Land & Building 
PLC (Ultimate Parent Company) He also serves on 
the Boards of  other Companies in which a majority 
of  the Directors of  the Company are Directors and is 
a Director of  a Company which has a significant 
shareholding in another. Despite these factors, the 
Board having taken into consideration all other 
circumstances listed in the Colombo Stock Exchange 
Listing Rules pertaining to the Criteria for Defining 
Independence is of  the opinion that Mr. A.R. Rasiah 
is nevertheless independent.

Financial Acumen
The Directors are from varied business and 
professional backgrounds. Their expertise enables 
them to exercise independent judgement and their 
views carry substantial weight in decision making. 
The Board includes six finance Professionals who 
possess the necessary knowledge to offer guidance on 
matters of  finance.

Company Secretaries and Independent 
Professional advice
The Directors may seek advice from Corporate 
Managers and Secretaries (Pvt) Ltd., who are qualified 
to act as Secretaries as  per the provisions of  the 
Companies Act No. 7 of  2007. Advice is also sought 
from independent external professionals whenever  
the Board deems it necessary. 

Supply of Information
The Directors are provided with an Agenda, Minutes 
and relevant Board Papers prior to Board Meetings.   

Minutes of  all the Meetings are properly recorded 
and circulated amongst the Directors. 

Appointments to the Board 
The Board as a whole decides on the appointment of  
Directors in accordance with the Articles of  
Association of  the Company and in compliance with 
the Rules on Corporate Governance.

The details of  new appointments to the Board are 
made available to shareholders by making 
announcements to the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Re- election of Directors
In terms of  the Articles of  Association a Director 
appointed by the Board holds office until the next 
Annual General Meeting, at which he seeks re-
election by the Shareholders. The Articles require 
that one –third of  the Directors retire at each Annual 
General Meeting. The Directors to retire are those 
who have been longest in office since their last 
election. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election 
by the shareholders.

Directors Remuneration 

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee Report is set out on 
page 15 of  this Report.

Relationship with Shareholders

Constructive use of the Annual General Meeting 
/ General Meetings

The Board considers the Annual General Meeting / 
General Meetings an opportunity to communicate 
with Shareholders and encourages their participation. 
Questions raised by the Shareholders over the content 
of  the Annual Report as well as other matters 
pertaining to the Company, are answered and an 
appropriate dialogue is maintained with them.

Major Transactions
There have been no transactions during the year 
under review which falls within the definition of  

Corporate governanCe (Contd)...
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‘Major Transactions’ as set out in the Companies 
Act.

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting
The Board of  Directors considers the timely 
publication of  its Annual and Quarterly Financial 
Statements as a high priority. These publications 
include financial and non-financial information in 
order to facilitate the requirements of  the existing 
and potential shareholders. The Financial Statements 
are prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee Report is set out on pages 13.

Internal Control
The Board of   Directors are responsible for the 
Company’s system of  internal controls and for 
reviewing its effectiveness. The  system is designed to 
safeguard assets against unauthorized use or  disposal 
and to ensure proper accounting records are 
maintained.

Corporate governanCe (Contd)...
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audIt CommIttee report

The Audit Committee Report focuses on the activities 
of  the Company for the year under review, which the 
Committee has reviewed and monitored as to provide 
additional assurance on the reliability of  the Financial 
Statements through a process of  independent and 
objective views.

Composition
The Audit Committee of  Marawila Resorts PLC 
(MR PLC) comprises of  an Independent Non - 
Executive Director of  The Colombo Fort Land & 
Building PLC (CFLB) (Ultimate Parent Company) 
and two Independent Non- Executive Directors and 
a  Non –Executive Director of  the Company. The 
names of  the Members are set out below: 

Mr. A. M. de S. Jayaratne
Chairman – (Independent Non-Executive Director-  
CFLB)

Mr. C. P. R. Perera
Member – (Independent Non-Executive Director, 
MRPLC)

Mr. E. P. A. Cooray
Member – (Independent Non-Executive Director, 
MRPLC)

Mr. S. Rajaratnam
Member – (Non-Executive Director, MRPLC)

The Committee has persons with a blend of  
experience in the Commercial and  Financial Sectors 
and they are of  integrity and possess business acumen 
in order to carry out their role efficiently and 
effectively. 

The Company’s Secretaries, Corporate Managers & 
Secretaries (Private) Limited function as the 
Secretaries to the Audit Committee.

Role of  the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee endeavours to assist the 
Directors to discharge their duties and responsibilities 
in respect of  regulatory compliance and risk 
management. 

During the year under review, the Committee has 
assisted the Board in ensuring compliance with the 
statutory provisions prior to publication of  Interim 
Financial Statements and the Annual Report. The 
Committee has taken necessary measures to ensure 
that the Interim Financial Statements and the Annual 
Report are published timely and they are prepared 
and presented in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards and also in compliance with 
the Companies Act and other regulatory requirements. 
The Committee has assessed the adequacy of  existing 
internal controls and risk management procedures 
and recommends to the Board, additional controls 
and risk mitigating strategies that could be 
implemented to strengthen the existing internal 
control system. 

Meetings and Attendance
The Audit Committee has met on four occasions 
during the financial year ended 31st March 2014 and 
the attendance was as follows:

Mr. A. M. de S. Jayaratne - Chairman  4/4

Mr. C. P. R. Perera  3/4

Mr. E.P.A. Cooray  3/4

Mr. S. Rajaratnam 2/4

Senior Management Personnel of  the Company are 
invited to the Meetings as and when required. The 
Proceedings of  the Audit Committee are reported to 
the Board of  Directors.

External Audit
The Company has appointed Messrs. KPMG as its 
external Auditor and the services  provided by them 
are segregated between audit and tax consultancy.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the 
Board of  Directors the reappointment of  Messrs. 
KPMG as Auditors for the financial year ending 31st 
March 2015, subject to the approval of  the 
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
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Conclusion
The Audit Committee is of  the view that adequate 
controls are in place to safeguard the Company’s 
Assets and that the financial position and the results 
disclosed in the Audited Accounts are free from any 
material misstatements.

A.M. de S. Jayaratne
Chairman
Audit Committee

23rd May 2014

audIt CommIttee report (Contd)...
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The Company’s Remuneration Committee was 
reconstituted on 1st November 2013 and comprise of  
the following members :

Mr. C.P.R. Perera           
Chairman - Independent/Non-Executive Director

Mr. E.P.A. Cooray           
Member   - Independent/Non-Executive Director

Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam          
Member   - Non-Executive   Director

The Committee is responsible for recommending 
remuneration packages for the senior management 
personnel. In addition they lay down guidelines and 
parameters for the compensation structure of  the 
management staff.

The key objective of  the committee is to attract, 
motivate and retain qualified and experienced 
personnel and to ensure that the remuneration of  
executives at each level of  management is competitive 
and are rewarded in a fair manner based on their 
performance.

C.P.R.  Perera 
Chairman
Remuneration Committee

23rd May 2014

remuneratIon CommIttee report
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Independent audItors’ report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MARAWILA RESORTS PLC

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of  Marawila Resorts PLC (“the Company”), which 
comprise the statement of  financial position as at 31st March 2014, the Statements of  Comprehensive Income, 
Changes in Equity and Cash Flow for the year then ended, and Notes, comprising a summary of  significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out in pages 17 to 48 of  the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of  these financial statements in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of  financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; 
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Scope of  Audit and Basis of  Opinion
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of  our knowledge and belief  were 
necessary for the purposes of  our audit. We therefore believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the Company maintained proper accounting records 
for the year ended 31st March 2014 and the financial statements give a true and fair view of  the financial 
position of  the Company as at 31st March 2014, and of  its financial performance and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
These financial statements also comply with the requirements of  Section 151(2) of  the Companies Act No. 07 
of  2007.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
23rd May 2014
Colombo.
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statement of ComprehensIve InCome

For the Year Ended 31st March Note 2014 2013

   Rs.   Rs.

Revenue  4 397,333,333  303,035,976 

Other income  5 7,211,824  8,097,857 

Staff  cost  6  (69,222,466)  (53,189,629)

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 11  (41,416,292)  (28,717,985)

Other operating expenses - direct   (109,403,950)  (73,652,767)

Other operating expenses - indirect   (112,143,192)  (103,844,604)

Net Finance Expenses 7  (56,639,670)  (15,646,828)

Profit before tax  8  15,719,587  36,082,020 

Taxation  9  (2,190,768)  (13,413,703)

Profit for the year   13,528,819  22,668,317 

Other Comprehensive income / (expense)    

Actuarial gain / (loss) arising from the defined benefit obligation 18  774,370   (171,180)

Net change in fair value of  available for sale financial assets    (2,020,044)  (5,595,757)

Total other comprehensive income / (expense)   (1,245,674)  (5,766,937)

Total comprehensive income for the year   12,283,145  16,901,380 

Basic earning per share (Rs.) 10 0.11  0.19 

     

The Accounting policies and Notes form an integral part of  these financial statements.   

The figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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statement of fInanCIal posItIon

As at 31st March  Note 2014 2013
ASSETS   Rs.   Rs.
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 11  1,620,087,966   1,649,953,201 
Available for sale financial assets 12  10,770,732   12,790,776 
      1,630,858,698   1,662,743,977 
Current assets     
Inventories  13  9,354,822   8,928,678 
Trade and other receivables 14  137,663,582   95,338,651 
Amounts due from related parties 15  -     720,270 
Cash and cash equivalents 16  45,825,562   15,119,146 
    192,843,966   120,106,745 

Total assets    1,823,702,664   1,782,850,722 
     
Equity and liabilities    
Equity     
Stated capital  17  1,001,000,000   1,001,000,000 
Accumulated losses   (95,834,580) (108,117,725)
Total equity   905,165,420   892,882,275 
     
Non-current liabilities    
Retirement benefit obligations 18  5,907,429  6,038,069 
Deferred tax liability 19  44,440,517   43,094,408 
Interest bearing  borrowings 20  284,438,000   450,952,310 
    334,785,946   500,084,787 
Current liabilities    
Interest bearing borrowings 20  299,393,028   192,356,506 
Trade and other payables 21  110,977,113   106,002,082 
Amounts due to related parties 22  173,381,157   91,525,072 
    583,751,298   389,883,660 
     
Total Liabilities    918,537,244   889,968,447 
     
Total equity and liabilities   1,823,702,664   1,782,850,722 
      
The Accounting policies and Notes  form an integral part of  these financial statements.   
The figures in brackets indicate deductions.    
 
It is certified that the Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of  Companies Act 
No. 7 of  2007.     

D. Diaz
Finance Manager     

The Board of  Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of  these Financial Statements.  
Approved and signed for and on behalf  of  the Board of  Directors, of  Marawila Resorts PLC.   
    

S. Rajaratnam  A.R Peiris
Director  Director  
     
Colombo,     
23rd May 2014
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statement of Changes In equIty

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 Stated   Accumulated   Total 

   Capital   Loss   Equity 

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April 2012  1,001,000,000   (125,019,105)  875,980,895 

Profit for the year       -   22,668,317  22,668,317

Other comprehensive income/ (expense)  -     (5,766,937)  (5,766,937)

Balance as at 31st March 2013  1,001,000,000   (108,117,725)  892,882,275 

Profit for the year       -   13,528,819  13,528,819

Other comprehensive income/ (expense)  -     (1,245,674)  (1,245,674) 

Balance as at 31st March 2014  1,001,000,000  (95,834,580) 905,165,420 

     

The Accounting policies and Notes  form an integral part of  these financial statements.   

The figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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statement of Cash flows

For the year ended 31st March  2014 2013
  Note Rs.   Rs.
 
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense  15,719,587  36,082,020 
    
Adjustments for :   
Finance cost    39,331,886  23,157,027 
Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment  41,416,292  28,717,985 
Provision for retiring gratuity  1,864,764  1,154,167 
Gain on disposal of  property,plant and equipment  (1,525,350)  -   
Exchange (gain)/loss on Bank loans  17,560,929  (10,599,767)
Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital changes  114,368,108  78,511,432 
    
(Increase)/decrease in inventories  (426,144) 365,455 
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables  (42,324,931) (17,895,254)
(Increase)/Decrease in amount due from related parties  720,270  14,915,121 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other payable  4,130,372  34,152,474 
Increase/(Decrease) in amount due to related parties  81,856,085  75,519,283 
Cash Generated from Operations  158,323,760  185,568,511 
    
Finance cost paid   (37,990,005) (22,224,423)
Retiring gratuity paid  (1,221,034) (142,350)
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities  119,112,721  163,201,738 
    
Cash flows from Investing Activities    

Acquisition of  property, plant and equipment  (13,790,707) (420,309,766)
Proceeds from disposal of  property, plant and equipment  3,765,000   -   
Net cash flow from investing activities  (10,025,707) (420,309,766)
    
Cash flows from Financing Activities    

Lease rentals paid   (6,300,284) (3,348,961)
Repayment of  loans  (133,726,194) (70,710,241)
Loan Proceeds   772,800  321,276,650 
Net cash flow from Financing Activities  (139,253,678) 247,217,448 
    
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents  (30,166,664) (9,890,580)
    
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of  the year  1,975,086  11,865,666 
    
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of  the year 16 (28,191,578) 1,975,086 
    
The  Accounting policies and Notes  form an integral part of  these financial statements.   

The figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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1. REPORTING ENTITY
1.1 Domicile and Legal Form
 Marawila Resorts PLC is a Limited Liability 

Company that owns and operates Hotel “Club 
Palm Bay” which is incorporated and domiciled in 
Sri Lanka. The registered office of  the Company is 
located at 8-5/2, Leyden Bastian Road, York 
Arcade Building, Colombo 1, and the principal 
place of  business is situated at Thalwilawella, 
Thoduwawa, Marawila.

1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of  Operations
 The principal activity of  the Company is 

Hoteliering, which remained unchanged during the 
year.

1.3 Parent Enterprise and Ultimate Parent 
Enterprise

 In the Directors’ opinion, the Company’s parent 
undertaking is Lankem Ceylon PLC, while the 
ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 
is The Colombo Fort Land & Building PLC, which 
is incorporated in Sri Lanka.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of  Compliance
 The Financial Statements of  the Company 

comprise the Statement of  Financial Position, 
Statements of  Comprehensive Income, Statements 
of  Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of  
Changes in Equity and Statement of  Cash Flows 
together with the Accounting Policies and Notes to 
the Financial Statements. The financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards (SLFRS) as issued by the 
Institute of  Chartered Accountants of  Sri Lanka 
(CA Sri Lanka) and the requirements of  the 
Companies Act No.7 of  2007. 

 The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st 
March, 2014 were authorized for issue by the 
Directors on 23rd May 2014.

 
2.2 Basis of  Measurement
 The financial statements have been prepared on the 

historical cost basis except the valuations of  

Retirement Benefit Obligation and Available for 
Sale Investment which is disclosed in notes to the 
Financial Statements.

2.3 Use of  Estimates Judgments and 
Assumptions

 The preparation of  the financial statements in 
conformity with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
(SLFRS) requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application 
of  accounting policies and the reported amounts of  
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are review 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognize in the period in which the 
estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

 Information about critical judgments in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant 
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial 
statements is included in the following notes: 

  Policy No. Note
 Valuation of  Property, 

 Plant and Equipments  3.3.1  11

 Impairment of  Assets  3.4  11

 Deferred Tax Liability  3.10  19

 Valuation of  Employee 

 Benefit Liabilities  3.6  18

 Provisions, Contingent 

 Assets and Liabilities  3.17 24

2.4 Functional and Presentation Currency
 The Financial Statements are presented in Sri 

Lankan Rupees, which is the Company functional 
and presentation currency. 

2.5 Accounting Policies and Comparative 
Information

 The Accounting Policies applied by the Company 
are, unless otherwise stated, consistent with those 

notes to the fInanCIal statements

For the year ended 31st March 2014
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used in the previous year.  Previous year’s figures 
and phrases have been rearranged, wherever 
necessary, to conform to the current year’s 
presentation.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 The accounting policies set out below have been 

applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
financial statements.

 The Company assessed the current financial 
performance and working capital requirement as at 
end of  the reporting period. The Board of  Directors 
are of  the opinion that the going concern 
assumption is valid in preparation of  these financial 
statements due to the future growth potentials in 
the tourism industry, arrangements with lenders 
and necessary financial support from ultimate 
parent company.

3.1 Foreign Currency Translation
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to 

the respective functional currencies at exchange 
rates at the dates of  the transactions. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to 
the functional currency at the exchange rate at that 
date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary 
items is the difference between amortized cost in 
the functional currency at the beginning of  the 
year, adjusted for effective interest and payments 
during the year, and the amortized cost in foreign 
currency translated at the exchange rate at the end 
of  the year.

 Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
retranslated to the functional currency at the 
exchange rate at the date that the fair value was 
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured 
based on historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rate at the date of  the 
transaction. 

3.2.  Financial instruments

3.2.1. Non-derivative financial assets 
 The Company initially recognizes loans and 

receivables on the date that they are originated. All 
other financial assets (including assets designated as 
at fair value through profit or loss) are recognized 
initially on the trade date, which is the date that the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of  the instrument. 

 The Company derecognizes a financial asset when 
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the 
contractual cash flows in a transaction in, which 
substantially all the risks and rewards of  ownership 
of  the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in 
such transferred financial assets that is created or 
retained by the Company is recognized as a separate 
asset or liability. 

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net 
amount presented in the statement of  financial 
position when, and only when, the Company has a 
legal right to offset the amounts and intends either 
to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 The Company classifies non-derivative financial 
assets into the following categories: financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss, hold to-maturity 
financial assets, loans and receivables and available 
for sale financial assets.

 Financial asset is classified as at fair value 
through profit or loss

 A financial asset is classified as at fair value through 
profit or loss if  it is classified as held-for- trading or 
is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial 
assets are designated as at fair value through profit 
or loss if  the Company manages such investments 
and makes purchase and sale decisions based on 
their fair value in accordance with the Company’s 
documented risk management or investment 

notes to the fInanCIal statements (Contd)...

For the year ended 31st March 2014
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strategy. Attributable transaction costs are 
recognized in profit or loss as incurred Financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss are 
measured at fair value and changes therein, which 
takes into account any dividend income, are 
recognized in profit or loss. 

 Held-to-maturity financial assets
 If  the Company has the positive intent and ability 

to hold debt securities to maturity, then such 
financial assets are classified as held to-maturity. 
Held-to-maturity financial assets are recognized 
initially at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
less any impairment losses. 

 Loans and receivables
 Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed 

or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market. Such assets are recognized initially at 
fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and 
receivables are measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest method, less any impairment 
losses. 

 Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash 
equivalents, amounts due from related party and 
trade and other receivables.

 Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances 

and call deposits with maturities of  three months or 
less from the acquisition date that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of  changes in their fair value, and 
are used by the Company in the management of  its 
short-term commitments.

 Available-for-sale financial assets
 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative 

financial assets that are designated as available-for-
sale or are not classified in any of  the above 
categories of  financial assets Available-for- sale 

financial assets are recognized initially at fair value 
plus any directly attributable transaction costs.

 Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured 
at fair value and changes therein, other than 
impairment losses and foreign currency differences 
on available-for-sale debt instruments, are 
recognized in other comprehensive income and 
presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When 
an investment is derecognized, the gain or loss 
accumulated it equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

3.2.2. Non-derivative financial liabilities
 The Company initially recognizes debt securities 

issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that 
they are originated. All other financial liabilities are 
recognized initially on the trade date, which is the 
date that the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of  the instrument. 

 The Company derecognizes a financial liability 
when its contractual obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or expire. The Company classifies non-
derivative financial liabilities into the other financial 
liabilities category. Such financial liabilities are 
recognized initially at fair value less any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, these financial liabilities are measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

 Other financial liabilities comprise loans and 
borrowings, debt securities issued, bank overdrafts, 
and trade and other payables. Bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand and form an integral part 
of  the Company’s cash management are included 
as a component of  cash and cash equivalents for the 
statement of  cash flows.

3.3. Property, Plant & Equipment

3.3.1 Freehold Assets

 (a)   Recognition and measurement
 Items of  property,  plant  and  equipment  are  

measured  at  cost  less accumulated  depreciation  
and  accumulated  impairment losses.

notes to the fInanCIal statements (Contd)...

For the year ended 31st March 2014
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 Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 
to the acquisition of  the asset. The cost of  self-
constructed assets includes the cost of  materials and 
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to a working condition for its 
intended use, and the cost of  dismantling and 
removing the items and restoring the site on which 
they are located and capitalized borrowing cost. 
Purchased software that is integral to the 
functionality of  the related equipment is capitalized 
as part of  that equipment.

 When parts of  an item of  property, plant and 
equipment have different useful lives, they are   
accounted for as separate items (major components) 
of  property, plant and equipment.

 (b)  Gains and losses on disposal
 Gains and losses on disposal of  an item of  property, 

plant and equipment are determined by comparing 
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying 
amount of  property, plant and equipment,   and   
are recognized   net   within “other income/other 
expenses” in profit or loss. 

 (c)  Subsequent costs
 The cost of  replacing a part of  an item of  property, 

plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying 
amount of  the item if  it is probable that the future 
economic benefits embodied within the part will 
flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of  the replaced part 
is derecognized. The costs of  the day-to-day 
servicing of  property, plant and equipment are 
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

 (d)  Derecognition
 The carrying amount of  an item of  Property, Plant 

& Equipment is derecognized on disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from 
derecognition of  an item of  Property, Plant & 
Equipment is included in profit or loss when the 
item is derecognized. When replacement costs are 
recognized in the carrying amount of  an item of  
Property, Plant and Equipment, the remaining 

carrying amount of  the replaced part is 
derecognized. Major inspection costs are 
capitalized. At each such capitalization, the 
remaining carrying amount of  the previous cost of  
inspections is derecognized.

 (e)  Depreciation
 Items of  property, plant and equipment are 

depreciated from the date they are available for use 
or, in respect of  self-constructed assets, from the 
date that the asset is completed and ready for use.

 Depreciation is calculated to write off  the cost of  
items of  property, plant and equipment less their 
estimated residual values using the straight-line 
basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation 
is generally recognized in profit or loss, unless the 
amount is included in the carrying amount of  
another asset. Leased assets are depreciated over 
the shorter of  the lease term and their useful lives 
unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will 
obtain ownership by the end of  the lease term. 
Land is not depreciated.

 The estimated useful lives for the current and 
comparative years are as follows:

 
 Assets Years

 Building on Freehold Land 40 years

 Plant & Machinery 10 years

 Equipment 06 years

 Furniture & Fittings 08 years

 Motor Vehicles 04 years

 Software 05 years

 Computer Equipment 05 years

 Air – Conditioners 06 years
 Linen, Cutlery & Crockery on Replacement Basis
 Depreciation has not been provided on Freehold 

Land 
        
 Depreciation of  an asset begins when it is available 

for use and ceases at the earlier of  the date that the 
asset is classified as held for sale and the date that 
the asset is derecognized. Depreciation methods, 
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useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted if  appropriate.

 Where the carrying amount of  an asset is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written 
down immediately to its recoverable amount.

 (f)  Capital work in progress
 Capital  expenses  incurred  during  the  year  which  

are  not completed  as  at  the  Balance  Sheet  date  
are  shown  as capital work-in-progress, while the 
capital assets which have been completed during 
the year and put to use are transferred to property, 
plant and equipment.

3.2.4 Finance Leases
 Leases in terms of  which the Company assumes 

substantially all the risks and rewards of  ownership 
are classified as finance leases. Upon initial 
recognition the leased asset is measured at an 
amount equal to the lower of  its fair value and the 
present value of  the minimum lease payments. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is 
accounted for in accordance with the accounting 
policy applicable to that asset.

 Other leases are operating leases and any 
prepayments are recognized in the Company’s 
balance sheet as lease hold rights. The lease hold 
rights under operating leases are charged to the 
income statement on a straight- line basis over the 
period of  the lease. When an operating lease is 
terminated before the lease period has expired, any 
payment required to be made to the lessor by way 
of  penalty is recognized as an expense in the period 
in which termination takes place.

 The cost of  improvements to or on leased property 
is capitalized, and depreciated over the unexpired 
period of  the lease or the estimated useful lives of  
improvements, whichever is shorter.

3.4. Impairment
3.4.1. Non-derivative financial assets
 A financial asset not classified at fair value through 

profit or loss, including an interest in an equity-

accounted investee, is assessed at each reporting 
date to determine whether there is objective 
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is 
impaired if  there is objective evidence of  
impairment as a result of  one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of  the asset, 
and that loss event(s) had an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of  that asset that can be estimated 
reliably.

 Objective evidence; that financial assets are 
impaired includes default or delinquency by a 
debtor, restructuring of  an amount due to the 
Company on terms that the Company would not 
consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or 
issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the 
payment status of  borrowers or issuers, economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults or the 
disappearance of  an active market for a security. In 
addition, for an investment in an equity security, a 
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value 
below its cost is objective evidence of  impairment. 

 Financial assets measured at amortized cost
 The Company considers evidence of  impairment 

for financial assets measured at amortize cost (loans 
and receivables and hold to-maturity financial 
assets) at both a specific asset and collective level. 
All individually significant assets are assessed for 
specific impairment. Those found not to be 
specifically impaired are, then collectively assessed 
for any impairment that has been incurred but not 
yet identified. Assets that are not individually 
significant are, collectively assessed for impairment 
by grouping together assets with similar risk 
characteristics.

 In assessing collective impairment, the Company 
uses historical trends of  the probability of  default, 
the timing of  recoveries and the amount of  loss 
incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as 
to whether current economic and credit conditions 
are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater 
or lesser than suggested by historical trends.
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 An impairment loss in respect of  a financial asset 
measured at amortized cost is calculated as the 
difference between its carrying amount and the 
present value of  the estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest 
rate. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and 
reflected in an allowance account against loans and 
receivables or held-to-maturity investment 
securities. Interest on the impaired asset continues 
to be recognized. When an event occurring after 
the impairment was recognized causes the amount 
of  impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in 
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

 Available-for-sale financial assets
 Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial 

assets are recognized by reclassifying the losses 
accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to 
profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is reclassified 
from equity to profit or loss is the difference between 
the acquisition cost, net of  any principal repayment 
and amortization, and the current fair value, less 
any impairment loss recognized previously in profit 
or loss. Changes in cumulative impairment losses 
attributable to application of  the effective interest 
method are reflected as a component of  interest 
income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of  
an impaired available-for-sale debt security 
increases and the increase can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was 
recognized, then the impairment loss is reversed, 
with the amount of  the reversal recognized in profit 
or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the 
fair value of  an impaired available-for-sale equity 
security is recognized in other comprehensive 
income.

 An impairment loss in respect of  an equity-
accounted investee is measured by comparing the 
recoverable amount of  the investment with its 
carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognized 
in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if  
there has been a favorable change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount.

3.4.2. Non-financial assets
 The carrying amounts of  the Company’s non-

financial assets, other than inventories and deferred 
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication of  
impairment. If  any such indication exists, then the 
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill 
and indefinite life intangible assets are tested 
annually for impairment. An impairment loss is 
recognized if  the carrying amount of  an asset or 
cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable 
amount.

 The recoverable amount of  an asset or CGU is the 
greater of  its value in use and its fair value less costs 
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of  the time value of  money and 
the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For impairment 
testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest 
group of  assets that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of  the 
cash inflows of  other assets or CGUs. 

 Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. 
Impairment losses recognized in respect of  CGUs 
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of  
any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of  
CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts 
of  the other assets in the CGU (group of  CGUs) on 
a pro rata basis. 

 An impairment loss in respect of  goodwill is not 
reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of  depreciation 
or amortization, if  no impairment loss had been 
recognized.

3.5. Inventories
 Inventories are measured at the lower of  cost and 

net realizable value after making due allowances for 
obsolete & slow moving items.
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 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in 
the ordinary course of  business, less the estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale.

3.6 Employee Benefits
 (a) Defined Contribution Plan - Employees’ 

Provident Fund & Employees’ Trust Fund
 A defined contribution plan is a post-employment 

benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity and will have no 
legal or constructive obligation to pay further 
amounts. All the employees who are eligible for 
Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust 
Fund are covered by relevant contribution funds in 
line with the respective statutes. Employers’ 
contribution to defined contribution plans are 
recognized as an expense in the Income Statement 
when incurred. 

 (b)  Defined Benefit Plans - Retirement 
Gratuity

 A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit 
plan other than a defined contribution plan. The 
Company’s net obligation in respect of  defined 
benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan 
by estimating the amount of  future benefit that 
employees have earned in return for their service in 
the current and prior periods. That benefit is 
discounted to determine its present Value. Any 
unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of  
any plan assets are deducted. 

 The calculation is performed annually by a qualified 
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) 
method as recommended by LKAS 19- “Employee 
Benefits”. When the calculation results in a benefit 
to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to 
the total of  any unrecognized past service costs and 
the present value of  economic benefits available in 
the form of  any future refunds from the plan or 
reductions in future contributions to the plan. In 
order to calculate the present value of  economic 
benefits, consideration is given to any minimum 
funding requirements that apply to any plan in the 

Company. An economic benefit is available to the 
Company if  it is realizable during the life of  the 
plan, or on settlement of  the plan liabilities. When 
the benefits of  a plan are improved, the portion of  
the increased benefit related to past service by 
employees is recognized in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the average period until the 
benefits become vested. To the extent that the 
benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognized 
immediately in profit or loss.

 The assumptions based on which the results of  
actuarial valuation was determined, are included in 
Note 18 to the financial statements.

 The Company recognizes all actuarial gain/losses 
arising from defined benefit plans in Other 
Comprehensive Income.

 
 However, according to the Payment of  Gratuity Act 

No.12 of  1983, the liability for the gratuity payment 
to an employee arises only on the completion of  5 
years of  continued service with the Company.

  
3.7 Provisions
 A provision is recognized if, as a result of  a past 

event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated 
reliably; and it is probable that an outflow, of  
economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. 

3.8 Revenue Recognition
 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is 

probable that the economic benefit will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. 
The following specific recognition criteria must also 
be met before-revenue is recognized.

 (a)  Income from Hotel 
 Apartment revenue is recognized on the rooms 

occupied on a daily basis and food and beverage 
and other hotel related sales are recognized at the 
point of  sale. All revenue are recognized on an 
accrual basis and matched with the related 
expenditure.
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 (b)  Sale of  Goods 
 Revenue from the sale of  goods in the course of  

ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of  
the consideration received or receivable, net of  
returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. 
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence 
exists, usually in the form of  an executed sales 
agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of  
ownership have been transferred to the customer, 
recovery of  the consideration is probable, the 
associated costs and possible return of  goods can be 
estimated reliably, there is no continuing 
management involvement with the goods, and the 
amount of  revenue can be measured reliably. If  it is 
probable that discounts will be granted and the 
amount can be measured reliably, then the discount 
is recognized as a reduction of  revenue as the sales 
are recognized. Revenue excludes value added 
taxes or other sales taxes.

 (c)  Rendering of  Services
 Revenue from rendering of  services is recognised in 

the accounting period in which the services are 
rendered or performed.

 (d)  Dividend Income
 Dividend income is recognised when the 

shareholders’ right to receive such dividend is 
established.

 (e)  Finance Income
 Finance income comprises interest income on funds 

invested (including available-for-sale financial 
assets), gains on the disposal of  available-for-sale 
financial assets and fair value gains on financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Interest 
income is recognized as it accrues in profit or loss, 
using the effective interest method.

 (f)  Others
 Other income is recognised on an accrual basis. 

Gains and losses on the disposal of  Property, Plant 
and Equipment have been accounted for in 
statement of  comprehensive income.

3.9 Expenditure Recognition
 All expenditure incurred in running the business 

and in maintaining the Property, Plant and 

Equipment in a state of  efficiency has been charged 
to Statement of  Comprehensive Income in arriving 
at the profit/(loss) for the year. Expenditure incurred 
for the purpose of  acquiring and extending or 
improving assets of  a permanent nature by means 
of  which to carry on the business or for the purpose 
of  increasing the earning capacity of  the business 
has been treated as capital expenditure.

3.9.1 Finance Cost
 Finance costs comprise interest expense on 

borrowings, unwinding of  the discount on 
provisions and losses on disposal of  available for 
sale financial assets, fair value losses on financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss and 
impairment losses recognized on financial assets 
(other than trade receivables). 

 Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to 
the acquisition, construction or production of  a 
qualifying asset are recognized in profit or loss using 
the effective interest method. 

 Foreign currency gains and losses on financial assets 
and financial liabilities are reported on a net basis 
as either finance income or finance cost depending 
on whether foreign currency movements are in a 
net gain or net loss position.

3.10 Taxation
 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred 

tax. Income tax is recognized in the income 
statement except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is 
recognized in equity.

 Current tax
 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the 

taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of  previous years.

 Deferred tax
 Deferred tax is recognized using the Statement of  

Financial Position liability method, providing for 
temporary differences between the carrying   
amounts of  assets and liabilities for financial 
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reporting purposes and the amounts used for 
taxation purposes. 

 The amount of  deferred tax provided is based on 
the expected manner of  realization or settlement of  
the carrying amount of  assets and liabilities, using 
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date.

 The principal temporary differences arise from 
depreciation on property, plant and equipment;   
tax losses carried forward and provisions for defined 
benefit obligations. Deferred tax assets relating to 
the carry forward of  unused tax losses are 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profit will be available against which 
the unused tax losses can be utilized.

 A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the asset can be utilized.  
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at balance sheet 
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realized.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if  there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes 
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to 
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis 
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized 
simultaneously.

 Additional income taxes that arise from the 
distribution of  dividends are recognized at the same 
time as the liability to pay the related dividend is 
recognized.

3.11 Cash Flow Statement
 The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using 

‘indirect method’. Interests paid are classified as 
operating cash flows while dividends paid are 
classified as financing cash flows. Interests and 
dividends received are classified as investing cash 
flows for the purpose of  presentation of  Cash Flow 
Statement.

 For the purpose of  Cash Flow Statement, cash & 
cash equivalents consist of  cash at bank and in 
hand and short term deposits net of  outstanding 
bank overdrafts. 

3.12 Segmental Reporting
 A segment is a distinguishable component of  an 

enterprise that is engaged in either providing 
products or services (Business Segments) or in 
providing products or services within a particular 
economic environment (Geographic Segment) 
which is subject to risks and rewards that are 
different from those of  other segments. 

3.13 Related Party Transactions
 Disclosures have been made in respect of  the 

transactions between parties who are defined as 
related parties as per Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards No. 24  – Related Party Disclosures.

3.14 Financial Risk management policies  
 The Company’s principal financial liabilities 

comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other 
payables. The main purpose of  these financial 
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations 
and to provide guarantees to support its operations. 
The Company has loan and other receivables, trade 
and other receivables, and cash that arrive directly 
from its operations and also holds available-for-sale 
investments. 

 The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk 
and liquidity risk. The senior management monitors 
these risks. The senior management is supported by 
an audit committee that advises on financial risks 
and the appropriate financial risk governance 
framework for the. The Audit committee  provides 
assurance to the senior management that the 
financial risk-taking activities are governed by 
appropriate policies and procedures and that 
financial risks are identified, measured and 
managed in accordance with  policies  and  risk 
appetite. 

3.15 Events Occurring After Balance Sheet Date
 All material post Balance Sheet events have been 

considered and where appropriate adjustments to 
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or disclosures have been made in the respective 
notes to the financial statements.

3.16 Earnings per Share
 The Company presents basic earnings per share 

(EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of  the Company by the weighted 
average number of  ordinary shares outstanding 
during the period. 

3.17 Capital Commitments and Contingencies
 Contingencies are possible assets or obligations that 

arise from a past event and would be confirmed 
only on the occurrence or non-occurrence of  
uncertain future events, which are beyond the   
Company’s   control. All material capital 
commitments and contingencies of  the Company 
are disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements.

3.18 New Accounting Standards issued but not 
yet adopted

 A number of  new standards, amendments to 
standards and interpretations are not yet effective 
for the year ended 31st March 2014, and have not 
been applied in preparing these financial statements. 

 The extent of  the impact has not been determined.

 Standard issued but not yet effective up to the date 
of  issuance of  the Company’s financial statements 
are listed below. This listing is of  standards issued, 
which the Company reasonably expects to be 
applicable at a future date. The Company intends 
to adopt those standards when they become 
effective.

 a)  SLFRS 9 – Financial Instruments
 SLFRS 9 as issued reflects the replacement of  

LKAS 39 and applies to the classification and 
measurement of  financial assets and financial 
liabilities as defined in LKAS 39. This standard 
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after January 01, 2015. The adoption of  SLFRS 
9 will have an impact on classification and 
measurement of  Company’s financial assets.

 b)  SLFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial 
Statements

 SLFRS 10 replaces the portion of  LKAS 27 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
that address the accounting for Consolidated 
Financial Statements. SLFRS 10 establishes a single 
control model that applies to all entities including 
special purposes entities. The changes introduced 
by SLFRS 10 will require management to exercise 
significant judgment to determine which entitles 
are controlled and therefore are required to be 
consolidated by the parent. This standard becomes 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 01, 2014.

 c)   SLFRS 11 – Joint Agreements 
 SLFRS 11 replaces LKAS 31 Interest in Joint 

Ventures and removes the option to account jointly 
control entities using proportionate consolidation. 
Under the new standards joint ventures must be 
accounted for using the equity method. This 
standard becomes effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 01, 2014.

 d)  SLFRS 12 – Disclosure of  interest in other 
entities

 SLFRS 12 includes all of  the disclosures that were 
previously in LKAS 27 related to consolidated 
financial statements, as well as all of  the disclosures 
that were previously included in LKAS 31 and 
LKAS 28. A number of  new disclosures are also 
required. This standard becomes effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 
2014.

 e)   SLFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement
 SLFRS 13 establishes a single source of  guidance 

under SLFRS for all fair value measurements. 
SLFRS 13 does not state when an entity is required 
use fair value, but provides guidance on how to 
measure fair value under SLFRS when fair value is 
required or permitted. This standard becomes 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 01, 2014.
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 For the year ended 31st March  2014 2013
   Rs.   Rs.
 
4. REVENUE    
 Food   170,392,385   123,629,235 
 Apartment   191,673,782   151,832,000 
 Beverage    40,566,574   32,378,701 
 Others   8,138,132   5,419,888 
 Gross revenue   410,770,873   313,259,824 
   
 Less: Tourism Development Levy   (4,017,284)  (3,087,009)
           Nation Building Tax   (9,018,599)  (6,876,156)
           Other Turnover Taxes   (401,657)  (260,683)
    397,333,333   303,035,976 
   

Value Added Tax of  Rs.54,106,940/-and Service charge of  Rs.40,172,843/- have been deducted in arriving at the 
gross revenue.

For the year ended 31st March  2014 2013
5. Other income  Rs. Rs.
    
 Rent income     450,000   450,000 
 Interest Income - On Loans given to Related Parties   3,285,175   1,347,524 
  - On CMSL Loan   1,355,811   855,000 
 Creditors no longer payable written back   -     5,107,516 
 Sundry income   595,488   117,366 
 Gain on disposal of  property,plant and equipment   1,525,350   -   
 Provision for doubtful receivable from related parties   -    220,451 
   7,211,824   8,097,857 
    
6. Staff  cost   
 Defined benefit plan cost - retirement gratuity   1,864,764  1,154,167 
 Defined contribution plan cost - EPF & ETF   8,031,446  6,496,328 
 Salaries and wages   59,326,256  45,539,134 
    69,222,466  53,189,629 
    
 Average number of  employees   220  204 
    
7. Net Finance Expenses   
 Interest on Finance Lease Obligations   1,125,177   932,604 
 Interest on Loans - Term loans   28,578,981   15,730,060 
 Interest on Loans - Related Parties   3,522,878   4,712,000 
 Interest on Overdraft and other charges   6,104,850   1,782,362 
 Exchange (gain) / loss on foreign currency loans   17,560,929  (10,599,766)
 Exchange (gain) / loss on translation of  foreign currency  (253,144)  3,089,568 

    56,639,670  15,646,828 
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 For the year ended 31st March  2014 2013
   Rs.   Rs.
8. Profit before tax    
    
	 Profit	before	taxation	is	stated	after	charging	all	expenses	
 including the following;   
 Auditor’s Remuneration   
  - Statutory audit    480,000   510,000 
  - Non audit services   249,043   270,404 
 Management Fees     1,506,786   12,255,347
 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment       41,616,292 28,717,985
 Secretarial fee paid to Corporate Managers & Secretaries (Pvt) Limited  550,800   550,800
 Director’s Emoluments  3,240,000 -

9. Taxation   
 a) Current Taxes   

In accordance with the powers conferred on the Board of  Investment of  Sri Lanka (BOI) under Section 17 (2) of  the 
BOI Law No. 4 of  1978 and in terms of  the agreement, Registration No.368/29/6/92 between BOI and Marawila 
Resorts PLC, The Company was not liable to tax on profits from business for a period of  ten years commencing 
from the Year of  Assessment 2001/2002. Accordingly the Company’s Tax Holiday has been over as of  31st March 
2011 and currently company is liable for income tax at the rate of  12% on profit from business and 28% on other 
income.

   2014 2013
   Rs.   Rs. 

 Income Tax   844,659   400,859 
 Deferred Tax charge / (release) for the year (Note: 19)  1,346,109   13,012,844 
    2,190,768   13,413,703 
 Reconciliation of  Accounting Profit and Taxable Income   
 Accounting Profit before Tax    15,719,587   36,082,020 
 Aggregate Dissallowed Items   56,390,313   44,748,683 
 Aggregate Allowable Items   (74,967,162)  (85,612,372)
 Tax Profit/(Loss) from business    (2,857,262)  (4,781,669)
     
 Other income   4,640,986   2,202,524 
 Tax Loss Utilised   (1,624,345)  (770,883)
 Taxable profit for the year   3,016,641   1,431,641 
     
 Tax at the rate of  12%   -   - 
 Tax at the rate of  28%   844,659   400,859 
 Provision for taxation on current year profit   844,659   400,859
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10. Basic earnings per share   
Earnings per share is computed by dividing profit attributable to the ordinary shareholders by the weighted average 
number of  Ordinary shares in issue as at the balance sheet date and calculated as follows,

For the year ended 31st March  2014 2013 
Earnings attributable to Ordinary Shareholders (Rs.)   13,528,819   22,668,317 

 Weighted average No. of  Ordinary Shares in issue   122,500,000   122,500,000 
 Earnings per ordinary share (Rs.)   0.11   0.19

11. Property, plant and equipment     
  Balance as at Additions/  Disposal/  Balance as at
11.1 Cost or Deemed Cost 01.04.2013 Transfers   Transfers 31.03.2014   
   Rs Rs.    Rs.    Rs.  
 Freehold assets     
 Freehold land  876,775,833   4,171,669   -     880,947,502 
 Buildings 802,097,530   288,280   -     802,385,810 
 Plant and machinery  53,142,252   1,371,146   -     54,513,398 
 Equipment  39,535,075   2,024,549   -     41,559,624 
 Furniture and fittings  61,081,926   199,269   -     61,281,195 
 Motor vehicles  6,143,400   -     -     6,143,400 
 Cutlery, crockery, glassware and linen  32,073,820   985,045  -     33,058,866 
 Software  1,395,329   -     -     1,395,329
 Computers  1,938,199   275,750   -     2,213,949
   1,874,183,364   9,315,708   -     1,883,499,073 
 Leasehold assets        
 Motor vehicles    11,711,600   -     (3,981,600)  7,730,000 
 Equipment- Television  375,000   -     -     375,000 
 Air conditioners  1,587,089   -    -     1,587,089 
   13,673,689   -     (3,981,600)     9,692,089 

   1,887,857,053  9,315,708  (3,981,600)     1,893,191,161

Property, Plant & Equipment includes a land to extent of  27 Acres situated at Thoduwawa, Marawila. The number 
of  buildings owned and used by the company for hotel operation is 50 and total square area is 279,974 Sq.ft.

notes to the fInanCIal statements (Contd)...



Marawila Resorts PLC   |   Annual Report 2013/1434

  Balance as at  Charge for     On Disposals/   Balance as at
11.2 Depreciation 01.04.2013   the year   Transfers 31.03.2014   
   Rs Rs.    Rs.    Rs.  
 Freehold assets     
 Buildings  179,406,876   20,059,516   -     199,466,392 
 Plant and machinery  15,627,433   4,024,264   -     19,651,697 
 Equipment  4,357,652   6,756,102   -     11,113,754 
 Furniture and fittings  13,244,446   6,573,226   -     19,817,672
 Motor vehicles   6,143,400   -     -     6,143,400 
 Cutlery, crockery, glassware and linen  11,087,572   985,045   -     12,072,617 
 Software  1,299,104   5,051   -     1,304,155 
 Computers  530,484   423,591   -     954,075 
   231,696,967   38,826,795   -     270,523,762
 Leasehold assets        
 Motor vehicles   5,162,880   2,262,482   (1,741,950)  5,683,412 
 Equipment- Television  125,015   62,500   -     187,515 
 Air Conditioner  918,989   264,515   -     1,183,504 
   6,206,884   2,589,497  (1,741,950)     7,054,431

   237,903,851   41,416,292   (1,741,950)     277,578,193 
 Work-in progress     
 Staff  Accomodation  -     2,048,108  -  2,048,108 
 New Rooms  -     2,426,890  -  2,426,890 
   -     4,474,998   -     4,474,998

11.3 Carrying amount  1,649,953,201     1,620,087,966

11.4 The cost of  fully depreciated assets as at the balance sheet date is as follows;   
 As at 31st March  2014 2013
   Rs.   Rs.
 
 Plant and machinery   13,078,330   13,078,330 
 Furniture and fittings  8,639,093   8,639,093 
 Motor vehicles - freehold   6,143,400   6,143,400 
 Cutlery, crockery, glassware and linen   12,072,617   11,087,572 
    39,933,440   38,948,395
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 As at 31st March 2014 2013
   %   
  No of  shares Holding Cost Valuation Cost Valuation
    Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
12. Available for sale 
 financial assets       
 Beruwala Resorts PLC   30,000  0.01%  32,250   48,000   32,250   60,000 
 Colombo Fort Hotels Ltd.  21,656,460  0.64%  21,356,460  10,722,732  21,356,460   12,730,776 
     21,388,710   10,770,732   21,388,710   12,790,776

 As at 31st March  2014 2013
13. Inventories  Rs.   Rs.
 
 Food   3,024,659   2,671,077 
 Liquor and beverages   2,199,934   2,182,551 
 Maintenance and others   4,130,229   4,075,050 
    9,354,822   8,928,678 
     
14. Trade and other receivables    
 Trade receivables   121,708,543   77,258,130 
 Advances and prepayments   3,602,416   4,648,231 
 Witholding tax recoverable  1,058,519   2,075,296 
 Deposits  1,014,890   1,014,890 
 Receivable from Corporate Managers & Secretaries (Pvt) Limited (CMSL)  9,562,808   9,674,774 
 Other receivables  515,976   667,330 
 Income tax receivable   200,430   -   
   137,663,582   95,338,651 

15. Amounts due from related parties Relationship   
 Darly Butler & Co Ltd Affiliate  -     327,250 
 Lankem Plantation Holdings Ltd Affiliate  -     40,000 
 Car Plan Ltd. Affiliate  -     47,319 
 York Hotels (Kandy) Ltd Affiliate  -     245,700 
 E.B.Creasy & Company PLC Affiliate  -     60,000 
    -    720,270 

16. Cash and cash equivalents
     
16.1) Favourable balance    
 Cash at bank  2,483,627   13,522,889 
 Cash in hand  1,004,890   1,596,257 
 Cash in transit  42,337,045   -   
   45,825,562   15,119,146 
16.2) Unfavourable balance    
 Bank overdraft  (74,017,140)  (13,144,060)
  Cash & Cash Equivalents for the purpose of  Cash Flow Statement (28,191,578) 1,975,086
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 As at 31st March  2014 2013
17. Stated capital  
 Issued and fully paid    
 Number of  Ordinary Shares    
 At the Beginning of  the Year    122,500,000   122,500,000
 At the End of  the Year  122,500,000   122,500,000  

 Value of  Ordinary Shares    
 At the Beginning of  the Year (Rs.)   1,001,000,000   1,001,000,000  
 At the End of  the Year (Rs.)   1,001,000,000   1,001,000,000  

The holders of  ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one 
vote per individual present at the shareholders meeting or one vote per share in the case of  a poll.

 As at 31st March 2014 2013 
   %   No. of   %   No. of
 Shares held by Related Companies  Holding    Shares  Holding    Shares
      
 The shares of  the Company held by the Parent     
 Company and its Subsidiaries are as follows;     
  
 Held by the Parent - Lankem Ceylon PLC 25.28%  16,700,919  25.28%  16,700,919 
 Held by Subsidiaries of  Lankem Ceylon PLC 72.21%  47,699,881  72.21%  47,699,881 
 Held By Others 2.51%  1,658,235  2.51%  1,658,235 
  100.00%  66,059,035  100.00%  66,059,035

 As at 31st March  2014 2013
18. Retirement Benefit Obligation   Rs.   Rs.

 Present value of  unfunded obligation    5,907,429   6,038,069 
 Total present value of  the obligation    5,907,429   6,038,069 
      
 Movement in the present value of  the defined benefit obligation     
 Defined benefit obligation as at 1st April    6,038,069   4,855,072 
 Current Service Cost    1,006,219   669,588 
 Interest Cost    858,545   484,579 
 Actuarial Loss / (gain) during the year   (774,370)  171,180 
 Payments made during the year   (1,221,034) (142,350)
 Defined benefit obligation as at 31st March    5,907,429   6,038,069 
      
 Expense recognized in the statement of  comprehensive income    
 Current Service Cost    1,006,219   669,588 
 Interest Cost    858,545   484,579 
     1,864,764   1,154,167 
 Expense recognized in the statement of  other comprehensive income   
 Actuarial Loss / (gain) during the year   (774,370)  171,180
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18.1 LKAS 19 - “Employee Benefits” requires the use of  acturial techniques to make a reliable estimate of  the amount of  
retirement benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods and 
discount that benefit using the Projected Unit Credit Method in order to determine the  present value of  the 
retirement benifit obligation and the current service cost. This requires an entity to determine how much benifit is 
attributable to the current and prior periods and to make estimates about demographic and financial variables that 
will influence the cost of  the benefitt. The following key assumptions were made in arriving at the above figure:  
     
As at 31st March   2014 2013

      
 Discount Rate   10.50% 11% 
 Salary Increment rate   7.50% 10% 
 Retirment age   55 Year   55 Year  

 The company will continue as a going concern.      
   
18.2 Liability is not externally funded     

   
18.3 The acturial valuation was carried out by professionally qualified actuaries, Messers Priyal S Goonetilleke and 

associates as at 31st March 2014.     
   

19. Deferred Tax Liability
 As at 31st March   2014 2013 
    Rs.   Rs.  

 Balance at the beginning of  the year    43,094,408   30,081,564  
 Deferred tax charge for the year    1,346,109  13,012,844 
 Balance at the end of  the year    44,440,517   43,094,408

 The above Deferred tax liability has been calculated as follows;    
    
 As at 31st March 2014 2013
   Tax effect on  Tax effect on
  Temporary  temporary Temporary temporary  
  difference differnce difference differnce 
    
 Property, Plant & Equipment  398,061,727   47,767,407   369,168,920   44,300,270  
 Defined Benefit Obligations  (5,907,429)  (708,891)  (6,038,069)  (724,568) 
 Tax loss carried forward  (21,816,660)  (2,617,999)  (4,010,786)  (481,294) 
 Net deferred tax liability  370,337,638   44,440,517   359,120,065   43,094,408  

 Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method providing for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of  assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Tempory differences associated with the company for which a deferred tax has  been calculated at 12%, are disclosed 
above.
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 As at 31st March  2014 2013
20. Interest bearing  borrowings Note Rs.   Rs. 

20.1) Payable after one year    
 Foreign currency loans 20.3  284,438,000   447,100,783 
 Finance lease obligations 20.4  -     3,851,527
    284,438,000   450,952,310 
20.2) Payable within one year    
 Foreign currency loans 20.3  222,704,317   175,434,000 
 Finance lease obligations 20.4  2,671,570   3,778,446 
 Bank overdraft 16.2 74,017,140   13,144,060 
   299,393,027   192,356,506

 Term loans Loan-I,II &1II  Loan-IV Loan-V Total  Total 
 20.3) Foreign currency loan  2014 2014 2014 2014 2013
   Rs.    Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

 Balance at the beginning of  the year 310,011,643   75,060,690   237,462,450   622,534,783   382,568,140 
 Add :Obtain during the year  -     -     772,800   772,800   321,276,650 
 Less: Payments made during the year  (128,340,802)  (4,611,544)  (773,848)  (133,726,194)  (70,710,241)
  181,670,841   70,449,146  237,461,402  489,581,389   633,134,549 
       

 Add: Exchange Loss/(Gain) on transalation 7,163,729   2,383,421   8,013,778   17,560,929   (10,599,766)

 Balance at the end of  the year  188,834,570   72,832,567   245,475,180   507,142,318   622,534,783 

 Amount payable within one year  188,834,570   4,681,223   29,188,525   222,704,318   175,434,000 

 Amount payable after one year  -     68,151,345   216,286,655   284,438,000   447,100,783

Loan I,II and III     
Lender : Hatton National Bank PLC. (Loan I,II and III)    
Purpose    :  For construction of  the Hotel.     
Security       : Existing Secondary Floating mortgage Bonds totaling US$ 5.1 Mn over the Hotel premises at 

Marawila.
Interest Rate     : 03 Months LIBOR + 5% (floor of  6%)    
 : interest to be serviced monthly.      

   
In terms of  the new arrangement made with Hatton National Bank PLC on 30th July 2012 and on 24th September 2012 
the Company has to settle the outstanding facilities as follows;     
     
Reschedulement of  Term Loan Facility Outstanding of  US $ 1.25 Mn, US $ 1.93 Mn & US $ 1.59 Mn  

Financial Year 2013/14- US$ 1,000,000 and balance by 2014/15     
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Loan 1V  Term Loan Facility Outstanding of  US $ 0.599 Mn
Lender : Hatton National Bank PLC
Purpose    :  For construction of  additional 56 rooms and new sewerage treatment plant. 
Security       : Primary concurrent mortgage over the existing land and Secondary mortage enhanced by US$ 

0.27Mn.      
Additional security over the new property where the new rooms are constructed and Plant & 
Machinery installed.  

Interest Rate     : 03 Months LIBOR + 5% (floor of  6%) 
 :  interest to be serviced monthly.  
Settlement :  US$ 23,960 in the year 2013/14 & US$ 47,920 in the year 2014/15. 
 : US$ 239,600 in the year 2015/16 & 2016/17 and US$ 47,920 in the year 2017/18.  

     
Loan V  Term Loan Facility Outstanding of  US $ 1.901 Mn 
Lender           :  Hatton National Bank PLC 
Purpose    :  For construction of  additional 56 rooms and new sewerage treatment plant.  
Security          Primary concurrent mortgage over the existing land and Secondary mortage to be enhanced by 

US$ 0.27Mn.      
Additional security to be executed over the new property where the new rooms are constructed and 
Plant & Machinery installed.     

Interest Rate     :  03 Months LIBOR + 5% (floor of  6%) 
 : interest to be serviced monthly.  
Settlement :  US$ 76,040 in the year 2013/14 & US$ 152,080 in the year 2014/15.  
 :  US$ 760,400 in the year 2015/16 & 2016/17 and US$ 152,080 in the year 2017/18.

 As at 31st March   2014 2013
 20.4) Finance lease obligations   Rs.   Rs.
 
 Balance at the beginning of  the year   8,562,535   11,911,496 
 Over due interest   668,533  -
 Settlement during the year   (6,300,284)  (3,348,961)
    2,930,784   8,562,535 
 Finance charges allocated for future periods  (259,214)  (932,563)
 Balance at the end of  the year   2,671,570   7,629,972 
     
 Amount payable within one year   2,671,570   3,778,445 
     
 Amount payable after one year   -     3,851,527 

    
During the year company has disposed a leased vehicle and settled the lease amounting to Rs.3,072,705/- 
which has included in the settlements.
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 As at 31st March   2014 2013
21. Trade and other payables   Rs.   Rs. 
     
 Trade payables   29,909,147   32,518,485 
 Interest payable on long term loans    333,396   333,396 
 Accruals and other payable    35,318,135   56,113,427 
 Rent received in advance from AIDA & Co.Ltd    2,312,500   2,642,500 
 Pradeshiya Sabha tax payable     13,962,305   13,560,648 
 VAT    28,296,971   -  
 Income tax payable    844,659   833,626 
     110,977,113  106,002,082

22. Amounts due to related parties  Relationship  
 Lankem Research Limited  Affiliate  2,000,000   -   
 Kotagala Plantations PLC  Affiliate  133,984   133,984 
 Agarapatana Plantations Ltd.  Affiliate  834,250   834,250 
 Sigiriya Village Hotels PLC  Affiliate  6,635,854   3,112,838 
 Lankem Paints Ltd  Affiliate 2,849,860     1,427,208 
 Sherwood Holidays Ltd.  Affiliate  267   189,267 
 Beruwala Resorts PLC  Affiliate  4,562,281   4,161,903 
 Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd.  Affiliate  38,220,000   38,879,116 
 York Hotel Management Services Ltd.  Affiliate  26,912,149   12,353,742 
 Colombo Fort Hotels Ltd.  Affiliate  90,566,759   29,767,010 
 The Colombo Fort Land & Building PLC  Ultimate - Parent  665,753   665,753 
     173,381,157   91,525,072

23. Related Party Transactions     

23.1 Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party     
 The Company’s parent undertaking is Lankem Ceylon PLC while the ultimate parent undertaking and controlling 
party is The Colombo Fort Land & Building PLC which is incorporated in Sri Lanka.   
   

23.2 Identity of  the Related Parties    
 The company has a related party relationship with the affiliated companies, Directors of  the company, key 

management personnel of  the company and their close family members.   
   

23.3 Transactions with Key Management Personnel and their Close Family Members.   
 According to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS) 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, Key Management personnel 
are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of  the entity. 
Accordingly, the Board of  Directors have been classified as Key Management Personnel of  the Company.  

 (i)  Loans to directors     
No loans have been given to the directors of  the company during the year.   
   

 (ii)  Key management personnel compensation      
Company has been paid Rs. 3,240,000/- during the year as short term benefits to the directors of  the company. 
(2012/13 - Nil)     

 (iii)  Other transactions with key management personnel    
 There were no other transactions with key management personnel.
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23.4 Transactions with Related Companies     
The company carries out transactions with related companies as defined in Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 24 - Related party Disclosure 
in the ordinary course of  business.The names of  the related companies , common directors and their relationship, nature  and value of  
transaction and balance outstanding as at 31st March 2014 as follows.

  
 Name of  the Related Party Name of  common Nature of  the  Nature of  2014 2013
  Directors Relationship Transactions  Rs.  Rs.
       
 York Hotel Management Mr. S.D.R Arudpragasam Affiliate Management fee   (1,506,786) (13,725,989)
 Services Ltd. Mr. A. Rajaratnam  Settlement of  Management fees  8,170,607  8,648,929 
  Mr. T. Theyagamurti  Advance given  (22,093,255) 
  Mr. S. Rajaratnam  Expenses Paid  1,125,496 
  Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam
       
 Sigiriya Village Hotels PLC Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam Affiliate Reimbursment of  Expenses  (3,523,016) (2,193,277) 
  Mr. C.P.R.Perera
  Mr. A. Rajaratnam    
  Mr. T. Theyagamurti     
  Mr. A. R. Peiris     
  Mr. S. Rajaratnam     
  Mr. E.P.A.Cooray     
  Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam
  Mr. A.R Rasiah     

 Agarapatana Plantations Ltd. Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam Affiliate  -     Nil   -   
  Mr. C.P.R.Perera 
  Mr. A. Rajaratnam     
      
 Kotagala Plantations PLC Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam Affiliate Buying USD to settle HNB- Loan  Nil  (4,000,000)
  Mr. A. Rajaratnam  Settlement for USD  4,000,000
  Mr. C.P.R.Perera     

 Beruwala Resorts  PLC Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam Affiliate Reimbursment of  Expenses  (400,378) 221,691  
  Mr. C.P.R.Perera
  Mr. A. Rajaratnam     
  Mr. T. Theyagamurti     
  Mr. A. R. Peiris     
  Mr. S. Rajaratnam     
  Mr. E.P.A.Cooray     
  Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam
  Mr. A.R Rasiah     

 Colombo Fort Hotels Ltd Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam Affiliate Short term loan received  (60,337,045) (41,000,000)
  Mr. A. Rajaratnam  Interest on Loan received  (2,325,704) (5,846,247)
  Mr. T. Theyagamurti  Interest on Loan given  1,863,000  1,347,524 
  Mr. S. Rajaratnam    - 225,000 
       
 The Colombo Fort Land  Mr. A. Rajaratnam Ultimate    Nil  (30,000,000)
 & Building PLC Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam Parent  - 30,000,000 
  Mr. C.P.R Perera   - (665,753)
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 Name of  the Related Party Name of  common Nature of  the  Nature of  2014 2013
  Directors Relationship Transactions  Rs.  Rs. 

 Lankem Paints  Ltd Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam Affiliate Purchases  1,422,651  (651,705)
  Mr. A. R. Peiris   - 824,788
       
 Lankem Plantation Mr. A. Rajaratnam Affiliate Sales - 40,000 
 Holdings Ltd. Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam  Settlement - (99,000)
  Mr. C.P.R.Perera     

 Lankem Tea & Rubber Mr. A. Rajaratnam Affiliate Purchases  356,312  (41,031)
 Plantations (Pvt) Ltd. Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam  Advances given - (38,220,000)
  Mr. C.P.R.Perera     
  Mr. S. Rajaratnam     
  Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam     

 Lankem Agro Chemicals Ltd. Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam Affiliate Settlement  Nil  (35,150)
  Mr. A. R. Peiris     

 Darley Butler & Co Ltd Mr. A. Rajaratnam Affiliate Sales  Nil  222,950 
  Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam  Settlement - (63,360)
  Mr. S. Rajaratnam
  Mr. A.R.Rasiah     

 Car plan Ltd Mr. A. Rajaratnam Affiliate Setting Off  with B/F Provision  Nil  (97,994)
  Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam     
  Mr. A. R. Peiris     

 Sherwood Holidays Ltd Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam Affiliate Settlement of  balance outstanding 189,000  Nil   
  Mr. A. Rajaratnam     
  Mr. T. Theyagamurti     
  Mr. S. Rajaratnam     
  Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam     

 Voyages Ceylon (Pvt) Ltd Mr. T. Theyagamurti Affiliate Setting Off  with B/F Provision  Nil  (3,154,994)
       
 York Hotels  (Kandy) Ltd. Mr. A. Rajaratnam Affiliate Reimbursment of  Expenses  Nil  245,700 
  Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam     
  Mr. T. Theyagamurti     
  Mr. A. R. Peiris     
  Mr. S. Rajaratnam     
  Mr. Amrit Rajaratnam
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24. Capital commitments and contingent liabilities    
     
24.1 Capital commitments    
 There were no material capital expenditure committed and approved by the Directors as at 31st March 2014.  

  
24.2 Pending Litigations    
 The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of  legal claim arising in the ordinary course of  business. It is 

anticipated that in the event any material liabilities were to arise from such legal cases, an additional payment will 
have to be met. Accordingly, the Company has provided Rs.13,962,305/- in the financial statement as at 31st March 
2014 for the pradeshiya sabha tax payable since the Pradeshiya Sabha has filed a legal case against the Company.  
  

25. Comparative Information    
 The presentation and Classification of  Financial statement of  the comparative year has been amended where 

relevant to be comparable with those of  the current year.    
     
26. Events occurring after the Reporting date    
 No material events have taken place after the Reporting date which require adjustments to or disclosure in the 

financial statements.     
     
27. Segmental Information
  Food   Apartment   Beverage  Others   Total 

  2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
 

 Revenue 185,590,722 119,445,012 124,441,439 147,013,380 32,114,395 31,351,531 55,186,777 5,226,054 397,333,333 303,035,976 

 Less : Cost of  sales  (79,128,611) (56,145,843) (11,994,642)  (3,228,955) (17,173,921) (13,576,129) (1,106,776) (701,840) (109,403,950)  (73,652,767)

   106,462,111  63,299,169   112,446,797   143,784,425   14,940,474   17,775,402   54,080,001   4,524,214   287,929,383   229,383,210 
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As at 31st March 2014

 Name of  the Related Party Name of  common Nature of  the  Nature of  2014 2013
  Directors Relationship Transactions  Rs.  Rs. 

 Lankem Research Ltd Mr. S.D.R Arudpragasam  Affiliate Reimbursement of  Expenses - (2,000,000)
  Mr. A Rajaratnam
  Mr. R.N Bopeartchchi
  Mr. D.L Vitharana
  Mr. K.P.David
  Mr. A.R.Peiris  

 E.B.Creasy & Company  PLC Mr. A. Rajaratnam Affiliate Sales  57,600  60,000 
  Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam     
  Mr. S. Rajaratnam
  Mr. A.R Rasiah     

 This Note should be read in conjunction with Note 15, “Amounts due from Related Companies”, and Note 22 “Amounts due to Related Companies”
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28. Financial Instruments     
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:   
     
-   Credit risk     

-   Liquidity risk     

-   Market risk     
     
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of  the above risks, the Company’s objectives, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of  capital.  
     
Risk management framework     
The Company’s Board of  Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of  the Company’s 
risk management framework. They are responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management 
policies and reports regularly to the Board of  Directors on its activities.   
     
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, 
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.   
     
The board of  directors of  Marawila Resorts PLC, oversees how management monitors compliance with the 
Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of  the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

28. Financial Instruments     
      
28.1 Financial Instruments - Statement of  Financial Position     
      
 As at  31st March   2014 2013
 Financial Assets  Note Rs. Rs.
      
 Available for Sale Financial Assets     
 Other financial assets including derivatives   12  10,770,772   12,790,776 
     10,770,772   12,790,776 
 Financial Assets     
 Loans and receivables     
 Trade and other receivables  14  137,663,582   95,338,651 
 Amount due from related companies  15  -     720,269
    137,663,582   96,058,920 
      
 Cash and cash equivalents  16  45,825,562  15,119,146 
 Total    183,489,144   111,178,066 
      
      

notes to the fInanCIal statements (Contd)...

 As at 31st March 2014
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 As at 31st March   2014 2013
 Financial liabilities   Rs. Rs.
      
 Other financial liabilities     
 Interest bearing borrowings  20   509,813,888   630,164,756 
 Amount due to related companies  22   173,381,157   91,525,072 
 Trade and other payables   21   110,977,113  106,002,082 
    794,172,159  827,691,909 
      
 Bank overdraft  16   74,017,140   13,144,060 
 Total   868,189,299   840,835,969

28.2 Financial Instruments - Statement of  Comprehensive Income   
 During the year ended 31st March 2014 2013
  Gain /  Losses /  Gain /  Losses / 
  income expenses income expenses
  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
 Other financial liabilities     
 Amount  due from Related companies  3,285,175   -     1,347,524  -
 Amount  due to Related companies  -     3,522,878   -     4,712,000 
 Interest Bearing Borrowings  -     35,809,007   -     18,445,027 
 Total  3,285,175   39,331,885   1,347,524  23,157,027

28.3 Credit risk     
     
Exposure to credit risk    

 The carrying amount of  financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit 
risk at the reporting date was;     
     
As at  31st March Note  2014 2013

      
 Trade and other receivables  14    137,663,582   95,338,651 
 Amount due from related companies  15    -     720,269 
 Cash and cash equivalents  16    45,825,562   15,119,146 
     183,489,144   111,178,066

notes to the fInanCIal statements (Contd)...
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28.4 Impairment losses     
 The aging of  trade and other receivables at the reporting date was;    
      
  Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
  2014 2014 2013 2013
      
 Less than 30 days  70,154,133   -     10,538,920   -   
 Past due 31-60 days  61,034,457   -     63,223,801   -   
 Past due 61 - 365 days  6,474,992   -     21,575,930   -   
 More than one year -     -     -     -   
   137,663,582   -     95,338,651   -   
      

The Company belive that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of  trade receivables not past dues or past 
due by up to 365 days, which includes the amount owed by the Company’s most significant customer, relates to 
customers that have a good payment record with the Company.

 The aging of  amount due from related companies at the reporting date was;

  Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
  2014 2014 2013 2013
      
 Not past due -     -     -     -   
 Past due 0 - 365 days  -     -     505,290   -   
 More than one year  -     -     214,979   -   
   -     -     720,269   -   

 The Company belive that, no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of  amount due from related 
companies.     

 The movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of  amount due from related companies during the year 
was as follows;

                                                          Company
   2014 2013
   Rs.   Rs.
 
 Balance as at 1st April   -     3,473,439 
 Impairment loss recognised / (reversed)   -     (3,473,439)
 Balance as at 31st March   -     -

notes to the fInanCIal statements (Contd)...

 As at 31st March 2014
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28.5 Liquidity risk    
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the financial obligations associated 

with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets.   
  

 As at 31st March 2014 Carrying Contractual 12 months 1 - 2 2 - 5 More than
  amount cash flows or less years Years 5 years
 Non-derivative financial liabilities       
 Interest bearing borrowings  509,813,888 (509,813,888) (225,375,888) (284,438,000)  -     -   
 Trade and other payables  110,977,113  (110,977,113) (110,977,113)  -     -     -   
 Amount due to related companies  173,381,157  173,381,157 (173,381,157)   -     -     -   
 Bank overdraft  74,017,140  (74,017,140) (74,017,140)  -     -     -   
   868,189,298   (868,189,298)  (583,751,298)  (284,438,000)  -     -

 As at 31st March 2013 Carrying Contractual 12 months 1 - 2 2 - 5 More than
  amount cash flows or less years Years 5 years
 Non-derivative financial liabilities       
 Interest bearing borrowings 630,164,755   (630,164,755)   (179,212,445)  (213,615,170)  (237,337,140)  -   
 Trade and other payables  106,002,082   (106,002,082)  (106,002,082)  -     -     -   
 Amount due to related companies  91,525,072   (91,525,072)  (91,525,072)  -     -     -   
 Bank overdraft  13,144,060   (13,144,060)  (13,144,060)  -     -     -   
   840,835,969   (840,835,969)  (389,883,659)  (213,615,170)  (237,337,140)  -  

 It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or  at 
significantly different amount.

28.6 Currency risk       
 Exposure to currency risk     
 The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts;   

  2014  2013
  USD EUR GBP USD EUR GBP

 Trade & Other Receivables  598,410   111,934   12,803   368,053   182,730   17,675 
 Interest bearing borrowings  3,922,518   -     -     4,967,958  -     -   
 Total Exposure  4,520,928   111,934   12,803   5,336,011   182,730   17,675

 The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:    
  Average Rate Reporting date 
   spot Rate
    2014 2013 2014 2013
        
 USD    130.05   128.24   129.29   125.31 
 EUR   174.38   164.32   176.78   159.39 
 GBP    206.86   202.02   214.34   189.22

notes to the fInanCIal statements (Contd)...

 As at 31st March 2014
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28.7 Interest rate risk
 At the reporting date the interest rate profile of  the the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments was;  

  
 As at 31st March  2014 2013
    Rs.   Rs.
 Fixed rate instruments     
 Financial assets   - - 
 Financial liabilities    2,671,570   7,629,972 
    2,671,570   7,629,972 
 Variable rate instruments     
 Financial assets    -     -   
 Financial liabilities    507,142,318   622,534,783 
     507,142,318   622,534,783

28.8 Fair Values    
The fair values of  financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statements of  
financial position, as follows;    

Assets carried at fair values    
As at 31st March 2014 2013

  Carrying  Fair Carrying Fair
  amount value amount value
      
 Available for sale financial assets 21,388,710  10,770,732   21,388,710   10,770,773 
   21,388,710  10,770,732   21,388,710   10,770,773 
      

Fair value hierarchy     
 The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. Fair value hierarchy 
disclosures below.     
     
The different levels have been defined as follows:     
     
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities   
     
 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)    
     
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
 31 March 2014 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
      
 Available for sale financial assets  48,000  10,722,732   -    10,770,732 
   48,000  10,722,732  -    10,770,732 
   
 31st March 2013    
 
 Available for sale financial assets  60,000   12,730,776   -     12,790,776 
   60,000  12,730,776   -    12,790,776

notes to the fInanCIal statements (Contd)...
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share InformatIon

Distribution of  Ordinary Shares       
 
    As at  31st March 2014  As at  31st March 2013 

 Shareholdings   No . of   Total % of  Total No of  Total % of  Total 
    Shareholders Holdings Holdings Shareholders Holdings Holdings

  1 - 1,000  2,133  834,431  0.68 2,236 905,519 0.74  

 1,001 - 10,000  1,562  6,298,617  5.15 1,703 6,798,326 5.55 

 10,001 - 100,000   467  13,991,858  11.43 496 14,936,608 12.20 

 100,001 - 1,000,000 78  21,870,018  17.85 67 18,756,945 15.31  

  Over - 1,000,000  9  79,505,076  64.90 9 81,102,602 66.20 

    4,249  122,500,000  100.00 4,511 122,500,000 100.00

Analysis of  Ordinary Shareholders       
 
     31st March 2014   31st March 2013 

  Categories of    No . of   Total Holding No of  Total Holding 
  Shareholders   Shareholders Holdings % Shareholders Holdings %

  Institutions   161  86,240,107  70.40 168 84,214,733 68.75
   Individuals   4,088  36,259,893  29.60 4,343 38,285,267 31.25

    4,249  122,500,000  100.00 4,511 122,500,000 100.00

Public Holding   
The Percentage of  Shares held by the public as at 31st March 2014 was 45.85%  (31.03.2013 - 45.95%).   
     
Market Value    
The Market Value of  an Ordinary Share of  Marawila Resorts PLC is given below:   
     As at  As at 
     31.03.2014 31.03.2013
     Rs. Rs.

 Highest Price    8.10 9.80
 Lowest Price    4.70 5.00
 Closing Price    4.90 6.00
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share InformatIon (Contd)...

Twenty Major Shareholders As at   31.03.2014 As at   31.03.2013 
  No of  Ord. Share No of  Ord. Share
Name of  Shareholder Vot. Shares Percentage Vot. Shares Percentage

1 Colombo Fort Hotels Limited 46,043,261 37.59 46,043,261 37.59

2 Lankem Ceylon PLC 8,245,766 6.73 8,245,766 6.73

3 Waldock Mackenzie Limited/Mr.L.P. Hapangama 6,044,343 4.93 6,044,343 4.93

4 Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC/Lankem Ceylon PLC 5,455,153 4.45 5,455,153 4.45

5 Mr. George Lawrence Andrew Ondaatjie  4,282,725 3.50 4,282,725 3.50

6 Seylan Bank Limited-Lankem Ceylon PLC  3,000,000 2.45 3,000,000 2.45

7 Pan Asia Banking Corporation Plc/Invest Copia Capital (Pvt) Ltd 2,640,373 2.16 2,000,000 1.63

8 Mr. Mushtaq Mohamed Fuad  2,623,132 2.14 4,986,052 4.07

9 Commercial Bank Of  Ceylon PLC/ M.A.U.Gnanathilake  1,170,323 0.96 1,045,302 0.85

10 Flyasia Sdn.Bhd  978,031 0.80 230,563 0.19

11 Mr. Amarakoon Mudiyanselage Weerasinghe  904,400 0.74 904,400 0.74

12 Mr. Rizmy Ahamed Rishard  813,967 0.66 480,744 0.39

13 The Colombo Fort Land And Building PLC  755,821 0.62 755,821 0.62

14 Aruna Enterprises (Pvt) Limited  716,775 0.59 716,775 0.59

15 National Savings Bank  702,750 0.57 702,750 0.57

16 C M  Holdings PLC  673,000 0.55 673,000 0.55

17 Mr. Derek Joseph De Silva Wijeyeratne  655,055 0.53 549,105 0.45

18 Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Limited  652,500 0.53 652,500 0.53

19 Hexagon Holdings (Pvt) Ltd  615,017 0.50 36,500 0.03

20 Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC./

 Mr.Mohottallage Nihal Ranasinghe 595,000 0.49 789,357 0.64

 Total 87,567,392 71.49 87,594,117 71.50
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fIve year summary

 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2009/10
 Rs. ‘ 000 Rs. ‘ 000 Rs. ‘ 000 Rs. ‘ 000 Rs. ‘ 000

Occupancy 50% 52% 49% 53% 49%
     

Trading Results     

Revenue  397,333   303,036   256,726   209,753   169,445 

Profit / (Loss) after tax  13,529   22,668   (936)  19,206   (36,889)

     

Share capital & Reserves     

Stated Capital  1,001,000   1,001,000   1,001,000   1,001,000  756,000

Revaluation Reserve  -     -   -     -  748,560

Accumulated Loss  (95,835)  (108,118)  (125,019)  (113,674)  (904,470)

Shareholder’s funds  905,165   892,882   875,980   887,325   600,090 

     

Assets & Liabilities     

Property, Plant & Equipment  1,620,088   1,649,953   1,258,361   1,137,747   1,092,383 

Investment  10,770   12,791   18,387   22,342   10,624 

Net current Assets / (Liabilities)  (390,907)  (269,777)  (27,541)  134,076   (53,027)

Non Current Liabilities  (334,786)  (500,085)  (373,226)   (406,841)  (449,889)

     

Net Assets / (liabilities) Per share (Rs.)  7.41   7.28   7.15  8.30 7.90

Earnings / (Loss) per share (Rs.)  0.11   0.19   0.01   0.18   (0.49)
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graphICal revIew
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form of proxy

I/We .......................................................................................................................................................................... of  .......
.................................................................................................................................................................. being a member/
members of  MARAWILA  RESORTS PLC  hereby appoint ……..............................................................  of  .................
.................................................... or failing him.

1. Sri Dhaman Rajendram Arudpragasam of  Colombo or failing him

2. Chrisantha Priyange Richard Perera of  Colombo or failing him

3. Alagarajah Rajaratnam of  Colombo or failing him

4. Thedchanamurti Theyagamurti of  Colombo or failing him

5. Amaralal Rajasri Peiris of  Colombo or failing him

6. Emilianus Prema Alphonse Cooray of  Colombo or failing him

7. Sanjeev Rajaratnam of  Colombo or failing him

8. Amrit Rajaratnam of  Colombo or failing him

9. Albert Rasakantha Rasiah of  Colombo 

 
as my/our proxy to represent me/us and to vote on my/our behalf  at the Annual General Meeting of  the Company to 
be held on Friday, 11th July 2014, and at any adjournment thereof  and at every poll which may be taken in consequence 
of  the aforesaid meeting.

  For Against
1. To receive and consider the Annual Report of  the Board of  
 Directors and the Statement of  Accounts for the year ended 
 31st March 2014, with the Report of  the Auditors thereon. ……… ………

2. To re-elect Mr. T. Theyagamurti as a Director.    ……… ………  
      
3. To re-elect Mr. S. Rajaratnam as a Director.     ……… ………   
   
4. To reappoint Mr. A. Rajaratnam as a Director ……… ……… 

5. To reappoint Mr. C.P.R. Perera as a Director ……… ……… 

6. To authorize the Directors to determine contributions to charities      ……… ……… 

7. To reappoint as Auditors, Messrs KPMG and authorize the
 Directors to determine their remuneration.              ……… ……… 

    Signed  this .............. day of  .................... Two Thousand and Fourteen.

                 ................................................
Instructions as to completion are stated on the reverse hereof.      Signature of  Shareholder(s)

Note:
A proxy need not be a member of  the Company. If  no words are deleted or there is in the view of  the proxy doubt (by reason of  the 
way in which instructions contained in the proxy form have been completed) as to the way in which the proxy should vote, the proxy 
will vote as he thinks fit. 
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INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION

1. Please perfect the Form of  Proxy, after filling in legibly your full name and address by 
signing in the space provided and filling in the date of  signature.

2. In the case of  Company/Corporation, this Form of  Proxy must be executed either 
under its Common Seal or by its Attorney or by an Authorized Officer on behalf  of  
such Company/Corporation duly authorized in writing.

3. In the case of  a proxy signed by an Attorney, the relative Power of  Attorney should also 
accompany the completed Form of  Proxy for registration, if  such Power of  Attorney 
has not been Registered with the Company.

4. The completed Form of  Proxy should be deposited at the Registered Office of  the 
Company’s Secretaries, Corporate Managers and Secretaries (Pvt) Limited  8-5/2 
Leyden Bastian Road, Colombo 1, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for 
the holding of  the meeting.
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